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Port Phillip and
Western Port region
The Port Phillip and Western Port region is
home to over 4 million people and boasts
some of Victoria’s most productive farming
lands, spectacular parks, picturesque
landscapes and diverse natural
ecosystems. The activities and lifestyles
of the region’s urban and rural residents,
and the region’s thriving tourism industry,
are underpinned by the diversity and
health of its natural resources. Therefore,
the challenges associated with a growing
population and changing climate mean
the region’s natural resources need to be
carefully managed.
Native Flora and Fauna
The extensive range of habitats and
natural ecosystems found in the region are
home to many species of native flora and
fauna. While there has been substantial
development and alteration of the region’s
landscape, 39% of the region retains
indigenous vegetation including several
areas of significant grasslands. Around 34%
of this vegetation is protected in parks or
reserves and managed for conservation
while a further 20% is found on other public
land. The remaining 46% of this indigenous
vegetation is retained on private land. There
are many native animals that have adapted
to the change, but around 340 flora species
and 200 animal, bird, fish and reptile
species are considered under threat of local
or total extinction. Victoria’s bird emblem,
the Helmeted Honeyeater, is one of these
threatened species.
Parks and Reserves
The region is home to many parks and
reserves that support rare and diverse
flora and fauna species and provide highly
valued recreation and tourism areas. There
are eight National Parks, six State Parks
and eight marine protected areas, as well
as numerous regional, metropolitan and
local parks and conservation reserves.
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Victoria

4m+ people

600km
coastline
Agriculture
Of the 1.3 million hectares in the region,
around 45% is rural farmland with
industries including horticulture, dairying,
poultry farming, beef farming, horse
management and viticulture. The region
produces the second highest agricultural
yield, in dollars per year, among Victoria’s
ten catchment management regions.

1.3m
hectares

39% native
vegetation

Water Resources
The region’s water storage and waterway
system provides most of the potable supply
for 75% of Victoria’s population and many
other economic, social and environmental
benefits. There are around 8,400 kilometres
of waterways, attracting around 100 million
recreational visits annually. More than 900
wetlands are dotted across the region,
three of which are listed as Wetlands of
International Importance under the Ramsar
Convention on Wetlands.

The Bays and Coast
The catchments meet the sea at Port Phillip
Bay and Western Port, each with significant
ecological, economic and community
values. The bays support commercial
fishing, aquaculture, three major ports
and provide the most popular recreational
fishing areas in Victoria. Not surprisingly,
some 90 million recreational visits are made
each year to the bays and beaches of the
region’s 600 kilometre coastline.
Cultural and Natural Heritage
The region is home to many sites of cultural
significance including important Indigenous
sites such as stone quarries, coastal
shell middens and hundreds of scar trees
scattered across the region, geological
formations such as the Organ Pipes and
Werribee Gorge, significant landscapes and
vegetation of local and introduced species.
Managing the Region’s Natural
Resources
The region’s environment, as measured by
indicators such as air and water quality,
is generally good. These factors are
fundamental to Melbourne’s reputation
as one of the world’s most liveable cities.
Managing the natural resources in this
region is a complex task. Many people
and organisations play a part including
numerous Government agencies, 38
councils, various non- government
organisations, agricultural and industry
bodies and hundreds of volunteer
Landcare and community groups.

8,400km
waterways
45%
Farmland
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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The role of the PPWCMA
Who we are
The Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority is a Victorian
Government statutory authority established
under the Catchment and Land Protection Act
1994. The responsible Ministers for the period
from 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 were:
	the Hon. Ryan James Smith, MP, Minister
for Environment and Climate Change
(1 July 2014 – 3 December 2014); and
	the Hon. Peter Walsh, MLA, Minister for
Water (1 July 2014 – 3 December 2014); and
	The Hon. Lisa Neville, MLA, Minister for
Environment, Climate Change and Water
(4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015)

What we do
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is
responsible for:
	preparing a Regional Catchment Strategy
and coordinating and monitoring its
implementation;
	promoting cooperation in the management
of land and water resources;
	advising on regional priorities and resource
allocation;
	advising on matters relating to catchment
and land protection;
	advising on the condition of land and water
resources; and

	promoting community awareness and
understanding of the importance of land
and water resources, their sustainable use,
conservation and rehabilitation.

Who we work with
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA works
mainly with Government departments,
councils, water authorities, non-government
environmental organisations, community groups
and other partners to protect and enhance the
natural resources within the region.
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA also
works closely with the Victorian and Australian
Governments to secure and direct funds to
priority projects and secure additional funding
from the private sector to support these projects.
At the local level, the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA helps landholders to improve their
knowledge, skills and practices, and works with
the broader public to increase participation in
environmental conservation and gain input from
the community on important environmental issues.

We draw people and
organisations together to
create a shared vision for
the region’s environment and
generate collaboration with and
between these partners. We
make working together more
attractive than working alone.

Our vision
In 2030, people and organisations across the Port
Phillip & Western Port region will be collaborating
to protect and improve the extent, quality and
diversity of its environmental assets. Amid
continuous changes in land use and climate,
there will be shared leadership in decision making,
action, monitoring, reporting and learning that
ensures targets for environmental assets are met
and contribute to the natural ecosystems being
healthy and resilient.

Our values
	Vibrant and positive – we embrace
challenges with energy and enthusiasm;
	Reliable – we do what we say we will do
and deliver on our promises;
	Knowledgeable and articulate – we
seek to understand complexity and to
communicate it simply;
	Respectful – we actively listen to others
and respect their views;
	Focused – we value clarity of purpose and
focus on the things that matter most;
	Balanced – we value and encourage a
healthy work-life balance; and
	Supportive – we support our colleagues
and our partners.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Sarah Halligan assisting at a Conservation Action Planning workshop
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2014/15 Initiatives and
key achievements
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s initiatives
and key achievements during 2014/15 included:
	Gaining Victorian Government approval
for the web-based, interactive Regional
Catchment Strategy
	Securing revenue of $4.51 million for
natural resource management projects and
activities across the region that contribute
to implementation of the strategy
	Allocating $434,000 to 63 projects by
Landcare and community groups through
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
Community Grants
	Supporting 26 Landcare groups to develop
Conservation Action Plans for their areas
	
Making the Maribyrnong Valley greener
by undertaking 101 hectares of weed and
feral animal control and 43 hectares of
revegetation

	Securing a key delivery role in a new $5
million project coordinated by Lead West
to green the west of Melbourne with 1
million trees
	Securing the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA’s first Green Army for work in the
Maribyrnong Valley
	Enhancing the security and condition of
native grasslands on the volcanic plains
west of Melbourne by providing $162,000
of grants to 26 landholders
	Helping migratory birds and other native
animals by coordinating $653,000 of
environmental work in internationallyrecognised Ramsar wetlands on the
shores of Port Phillip Bay and Western Port

	Building strong relationships with
Indigenous communities and providing
tangible support through various projects
and events including the inaugural
Indigenous Wetland Wardens course
	Supporting 6 new and existing farmer
discussion groups and working with 5
agricultural industry groups to promote
sustainable agriculture across the region
	Involving over 5,000 participants in
community-based events including the
Grow West Community Planting Day with
220 participants and the Dog’s Breakfast
event at the Altona wetlands with over 100
participants.

	Securing the lead coordination role for
a new $3 million Dandenong Ranges
project for wildlife recovery, weed
management and bushfire fuel reduction

Participants at an Indigenous Wetlands Wardens Workshop at St Andrews Beach

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

05

Chair’s message
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is an
energetic, positive and professional organisation
and had a year filled with excellent achievements
in 2014/15.

Stamp of approval
A highlight was the formal approval by
the Victorian Government for the Regional
Catchment Strategy for our area. The
development of this new style of strategy –
an online, interactive, updateable strategy –
had taken time but passed all the necessary
requirements and is now actively pioneering
this modern approach which others will
undoubtedly follow.

Collaboration with partners
At a state-wide level, it was exciting to be part
of the collaboration between the 10 CMAs
and the Department of Environment, Land,
Water & Planning in responding to a Victorian
Auditor General’s report on the effectiveness of
CMAs. A number of challenges for our industry
were identified in the report and the collective
effort to respond to them is important so the
management of Victoria’s land, water and
biodiversity resources is even better in the future.

Our Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board
meetings through the year also involved
strategic discussions with regional partner
organisations. Our particular thanks go to the
Commissioner for Environmental Sustainability
and the leaders of Parks Victoria, the
Department of Environment, Land, Water &
Planning, the Victorian Catchment Management
Council, the Central Coastal Board, Frankston
City Council, the Corangamite CMA and the Mt
Rothwell Conservation and Research Centre for
their valuable contributions to our meetings.

Community focus
In the planning and delivery of our programs,
all of the CMAs, including here in the Port
Phillip & Westernport region, remained very
community focussed. In 2014/15, we were
proud to continue our support of Landcare and
a highlight was our coordination of a community
grants process that saw over $430,000 go
to community groups for local projects using
money from both the Victorian Government’s
Landcare Program and the Australian
Government’s National Landcare Programme.

We also worked closely with Landcare Groups,
Friends Groups, agricultural groups and
farmers on many activities. The landholders and
volunteers are the driving force for sustainable
land management and we remain committed to
supporting and helping them.

Efficient and well governed
From a business management perspective, the
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA again achieved
excellent financial management, governance,
risk management and project management
and stayed on track throughout the year with
all key business indicators. I thank all of our
Board members for their keen stewardship
of the organisation. I particularly thank Board
members Peter Akers, Kay Spierings and Arron
Wood who have served multiple terms on our
Board and made outstanding contributions but
will finish with us early in 2015/16.
I also sincerely thank the CEO and staff of the
PPWCMA for another year of commitment and
excellence. We are fortunate to have a team of
highly skilled and dedicated staff who work very
well with our Board and always achieve a great
deal more than might be expected of them.
In accordance with the Financial Management
Act 1994, I am pleased to present the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Annual Report for
the year ending 30 June 2015.

Neville Goodwin
Chair, Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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The Board
Chair – Neville Goodwin

Kay Spierings

Laura Mumaw

Neville is a primary producer at Woodleigh
and a former Councillor and Mayor of the
Bass Coast Shire Council. He is on the Board
of Bass Coast Regional Health, Chair of the
Grantville Community Market and Grantville
Recreation Reserve Committee, serving his
fifth term as a Community Representative on
the Bass Coast Shire Council Major Events
and Road Safety Committee, member of the
Bass Coast Shire Council Municipal Emergency
Management Planning Committee and member
of the National Vietnam Veterans Museum
Board. During 2014/15, Neville was Chair of the
PPWCMA Board and Chair of the PPWCMA’s
Business & Remuneration Committee.

Kay is a Certified Practising Accountant (CPA)
and a Graduate of the Australian Institute of
Company Directors. She is a primary producer
with a keen interest in sustainable agriculture
and has extensive business experience in
strategic planning, organisational governance,
policy formulation and business and financial
management and administration. She is Chair
of the Victorian Certified Seed Potato Authority
(ViCSPA) and Chair, Australian Seed Potato
Council (ASPC). During 2014/15, Kay served
as a member of the PPWCMA’s Business &
Remuneration Committee.

Laura holds qualifications in Biology (BSc) and
Fisheries (MSc) and is currently undertaking a
PhD in urban biodiversity conservation. She has
held senior executive and Board roles in Australia
and abroad for prominent organisations providing
conservation, recreation, tourism and community
education services. These include positions
as CEO of Zoos Victoria and Board member
of Landcare Research (NZ). During 2014/15,
Laura served as Chair of the PPWCMA’s Audit
Committee and as a member of the Regional
Catchment Strategy Steering Committee.

Greg Aplin
Arron Wood

Jacquelyn is a landscape architect (M.L.Arch)
who holds qualifications in science (BSc) and
management (MBA). She has broad public and
private sector experience in strategic planning,
landscape planning, urban design and natural
resource management and a strong background
in the delivery of large scale public infrastructure.
During 2014/15, Jacquelyn served as Deputy
Chair of the PPWCMA Board and as a member
of the PPWCMA’s Audit Committee.

Arron is the Director of Firestarter Pty Ltd,
an environmental communication and
education consultancy business. He is a
former Young Australian of the Year (National
environment category) and has received
numerous other awards for his services to the
environment. Arron has extensive experience
in major environmental and public awareness
campaigns. Arron is a current Councillor with
the Melbourne City Council. Through 2014/15,
Arron served as Chair of the PPWCMA’s Regional
Catchment Strategy Steering Committee.

Greg is a qualified civil engineer and town planner
with extensive experience in general management
and in the planning and development of
greenfields sites. During his 30 years in
local government, Greg was responsible for
commencing sustainable development initiatives
with particular emphasis on water, pest plant
and animal issues. Today, Greg is Director of
Applied Urban Solutions and sits on a number of
public and private boards. During 2014/15, Greg
served as a member of the PPWCMA’s Regional
Catchment Strategy Steering Committee and the
Grow West Implementation Committee.

Peter Akers

Jane Jobe

Sarah Ewing

Peter holds qualifications in civil engineering
and local government, with a broad range
of experience and skills in strategic thinking,
leadership, collaboration and project
management. He previously held a range of
senior executive roles in emergency services
and local government. Peter is currently
Chair of the Victoria State Emergency Service
Authority (VicSES). During 2014/15, Peter
served as a member of the PPWCMA’s
Business & Remuneration Committee and
Living Links Coordination Committee.

Jane holds qualifications in Applied Science
(Environmental Science) and a Bachelor of
Business (Communication). She is co-founder
of Southern Sustainable Developments,
which creates residential estates with a focus
on liveability and the environment, and has
served as a Board member of the Western
Port Biosphere and as a committee member
of Phillip Island Landcare. During 2014/15,
Jane served as a member of the PPWCMA’s
Audit Committee and PPWCMA’s Business &
Remuneration Committee.

Sarah is a geographer with extensive experience
relevant to catchment management, in both
research and education. Her particular interests
are in knowledge management and the policy
and practice of Landcare. She has previously
been a long-term member of the Victorian
Catchment Management Council. During
2014/15, Sarah served as a member of the
Yarra4Life Coordination Committee.

Deputy Chair – Jacquelyn Ross

Top left to right: Greg Aplin, Peter Akers, Jane
Jobe, Arron Wood, Laura Mumaw, Kay Spierings.
Bottom left to right: Sarah Ewing, Neville
Goodwin, Jacquelyn Ross.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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CEO’s message
There was much to be proud of in 2014/15
for the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA as a
number of long-standing projects achieved
milestones and exciting younger projects hit
their stride.

Regional Catchment Strategy approved
The formal approval of the Regional Catchment
Strategy was a significant milestone achieved
in late 2014. Our staff have skillfully guided this
new, online strategy from concept to reality
over a number of years and brought many
organisations on the journey. A feature was
that 19 organisations put their names and
commitment to relevant parts of the strategy.

From planning to action
We are also very proud of bringing the strategic
planning to life through numerous projects
improving the environment and landscapes
in various areas. The Grow West project has
now been under way for more than a decade
and the landscapes around Bacchus Marsh
are significantly improved as a result. The
Yarra4Life, Living Links, Ramsar Protection,
Greening the Maribyrnong and Valuing our
Volcanic Plains projects as well as the new
Dandenong Ranges project together undertook
millions of dollars’ worth of on-ground works
and helped many agencies and Councils
work together. In addition, our growing work
with agricultural groups and Indigenous
communities took major steps forward. All of
these projects involved numerous community
planting days and engagement events that
took important messages to landholders and
the wider public.
The funding support from the Australian
Government’s National Landcare Programme
was particularly important and valuable in a
number of these projects. The launch of the
$3 million, 3-year Dandenong Ranges project
was a particular boost to weed control, wildlife
enhancement and bushfire fuel management
in that area and we were pleased to secure the
lead role in managing that project.
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We were also pleased to have funding from
the Victorian Government to continue our
support for Landcare including the annual
PPWCMA Community Grants which provides
hundreds of thousands of dollars to Landcare
and community groups and networks for local,
on-ground work.

2015/16 will undoubtedly throw up many
challenges but I remain completely confident
in the ability of our Board and staff to convert
them to exciting new opportunities. We pride
ourselves on being vibrant, positive, focused,
articulate and reliable and look forward to again
demonstrating these traits in the year ahead.

Our people matter
A highlight of 2014/15 was the high morale
and cohesiveness of our staff group. We are
fortunate to have passionate and committed
staff who strive for teamwork internally and
with external partners. Our staff morale was
shown to be very high in the annual ‘People
Matter’ survey and sets the platform for ongoing
achievement in the years ahead.

David Buntine
Chief Executive Officer

PPWCMA employees
At the end of 2014/15, The PPWCMA employed
a total of 19 staff led by Chief Executive Officer,
Mr David Buntine.

CEO
David Buntine

The PPWCMA staff structure comprised the
following four teams:

Business Team
The Business Team coordinated the governance
and business systems of the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA to ensure transparent,
efficient and compliant management of all
administrative, finance, human resource,
communication and governance obligations.

Business &
Governance
Manager
Carolyn Nicholson

Landcare &
Sustainable
Agriculture Manager
Doug Evans

Environmental
Projects
Manager
Stephen Thuan

Environmental
Strategy
Manager
Ian Morgans

Communications
Coordinator
Sarah Darvall

Sustainable Land
Management
Coordinator
Anthony Dufty

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Helena Lindorff

Environmental
Strategy
Coordinator
Vacant

Finance
Coordinator
Tipei Gambiza

Sustainable Land
Management
Coordinator
Sarah Halligan

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Tim Bloomfield

Regional
Indigenous
Facilitator
Rhys Collins

Human Resources
Coordinator
Hayley Northcote

Regional
Landcare
Facilitator
Karen Thomas

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Sarah Maclagan

Environmental Projects Team
The Environmental Projects Team managed
the delivery of major environmental projects
including Grow West, Living Links, Yarra4Life,
Greening the Maribyrnong, Valuing our Volcanic
Plains, Ramsar Protection Program and initiated
the Dandenong Ranges Wildlife Recovery, Weed
Control and Fuel Reduction Program.

Environmental Strategy Team
The Environmental Strategy Team managed
the development of the Regional Catchment
Strategy, responded to draft environmental
strategies and plans of other organisations
and actively engaged with the Indigenous
organisations of the region.

Landcare and Sustainable Agricultural
Team
The Landcare and Sustainable Agricultural Team
supported Landcare to design and deliver high
quality projects, and supported farmers and
agricultural industry groups to adopt sustainable
farming practices.

Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Robert Hall
Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Andrew Morrison
Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Mary-Kate Hockey
Environmental
Projects
Coordinator
Kacie Melfi
(Maternity Leave)

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Summary of performance
Legend

ü

Achieved

ü

×

Partially achieved

Not achieved

Regional Catchment Strategy coordination and community engagement
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s performance targets for 2014/15
Ongoing engagements with regional stakeholders and community sectors to enhance
integrated catchment management, catalyse partnerships and projects, and identify
and consult on potential revisions to the Regional Catchment Strategy.

Achievement

Comments

ü

Numerous regional stakeholders and community
sectors were engaged through a variety of
mechanisms throughout 2014/15 and a list of
potential revisions to the strategy was maintained
on the strategy website.

Efficiency, effectiveness and environmental outcomes
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s performance targets for 2014/15
Deliver the Regional Landcare Support Strategy including coordination of Landcare at
a regional scale
10% or less of project funds is spent on Port Phillip & Westernport CMA administration
Grant applications are determined within one month of being received

Delivery of activities that fulfil the commitments associated with supporting sustainable
land management.
Delivery of activities that fulfil the commitments associated with supporting sustainable
agriculture.
Delivery of activities that fulfil the commitments associated with engaging Indigenous
communities.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
the Grow West project.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
the Living Links project.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
the Yarra4Life project.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
Greening the Maribyrnong project.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
projects in the Ramsar Protection Program.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
the Valuing our Volcanic Plains project.
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated with
the Dandenong Ranges project.
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Achievement

Comments

ü

All commitments for regional Landcare support
were fulfilled to the satisfaction of the investors
including the Victorian Government.

ü

Less than 10% of project funds was spent on
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA administration.

ü

The applications for the Port Phillip & Westernport
Community grants were determined within 12
days of the closing of applications.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
funding bodies.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
funding bodies.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
funding bodies.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

ü

All 2014/15 commitments for this project were
fulfilled or exceeded to the satisfaction of the
investors including the Australian Government.

Governance & Business Management
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s performance targets for 2014/15
Board performance report completed and submitted by 31 August 2014
All Board members participate in professional development activities relevant to the
PPWCMA
Board charter reviewed by 30 June 2015

Achievement

ü
ü
ü

Nil non-compliance with risk management plans
100% completion of all statutory reporting requirements on time
Each policy and procedure is reviewed at least every five years

100% compliance with all applicable Directions of the Financial Management
Compliance Framework

100% of Board members participated in
professional development activities in 2014/15
The Board charter was reviewed and approved
by the Board on 25 June 2015

ü

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Risk
Register was reviewed by the Audit Committee
or by the Board on 5 separate occasions during
2014/15.

ü

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA has a risk
management process and Risk register in place
that covers 100% of the CMA’s programs.

Risk Register in place and regularly reviewed

All programs have a risk management plan in place

Comments
A Board performance assessment report was
submitted on 29th August 2014

ü
ü
ü
ü

There was nil non-compliance with risk
management plans during 2014/15.
100% of all statutory reporting requirements was
completed on time.
100% of policies have been reviewed in the
past 5 years. 38% of policies were reviewed in
2014/15.
100% compliance with all but one Direction
during 2014/15.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

11

Coordinating
implementation of the
Regional Catchment
Strategy and engaging
with regional stakeholders
and the community
The Regional Catchment
Strategy was formally
approved by the
Victorian Government in
October 2014

19 partner organisations
contributed targets
and/or signed
commitments in the
strategy

A process to approve
amendments and
periodically update
the strategy was
successfully trialled
in 2015

Strategy for a complex region
Champions in the Regional
Catchment Strategy

The Port Phillip & Western Port region is home
to 4.2 million people. Its land, waterways,
coasts and bays are intensively managed
by around 50 local governments and state
agencies and over 300 community-based
organisations. The Regional Catchment
Strategy assists them to coordinate their work
around its shared vision and targets.
The Regional Catchment Strategy has
significantly evolved from previous editions.
It is an interactive website designed to be
reviewed and updated in response to change.
It is designed to be partner driven and owned
- founded on measurable targets set by its
partner organisations. It encourages its partner
organisations to choose how they will achieve
their targets and provides them with a framework
to measure their progress and success. The
strategy is online at www.ppwrcs.vic.gov.au
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19 organisations contributed targets and/
or signed commitments to the Regional
Catchment Strategy and have been
champions for this new style of strategy
and collaboration.

The home page of the on-line Port Phillip & Western
Port Regional Catchment Strategy

Approved by Government
The Port Phillip & Western Port Regional
Catchment Strategy was approved by the
Victorian Government In October 2014.

These champions are Boon Wurrung
Foundation, Brimbank City Council,
Casey City Council, Crib Point Stony
Point Crown Land Reserve Committee
of Management, Department of
Environment, Land, Water & Planning,
Environment Protection Authority, Greater
Geelong City Council, Hobsons Bay City
Council, Hume City Council, Manningham
City Council, Mitchell Shire Council,
Moorabool Shire Council, Mornington
Peninsula Shire Council, Nillumbik Shire
Council, Melbourne Water, Parks Victoria,
Phillip Island Nature Parks, Whittlesea
City Council and Wurundjeri elders.

Engagement

Case study – Whittlesea Council’s programs contribute to the regional effort

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s
engagement with environmental managers
in this region aims to make working with
others more rewarding than working alone.
Engagement with partner organisations during
2014-15 included:

The City of Whittlesea recognises its work contributes to environmental health and resilience
beyond its boundaries. Its targets for the health and security of native vegetation therefore
form part of the Regional Catchment Strategy.

	Detailed advice for 16 organisations
regarding their monitoring and evaluation
approaches and the potential to better
align their planning with the Regional
Catchment Strategy;
	Support for 32 organisations regarding the
development of climate change strategy for
biodiversity conservation; and

Contributing to the achievement of the targets, the Council has two major conservation
programs under way.
The first uses funds from developer contributions and vegetation clearing offsets to improve
high-value native vegetation in new Council reserves and protect them with conservation
covenants. Whittlesea manages over 500 hectares of native vegetation across 32 reserves.
Its work is creating new gifts of open space with natural values for future generations.
The second is an innovative collaboration with Parks Victoria. Together, they are working on
revegetation and weed control along the Plenty River upstream of Plenty Gorge. The project
combines the City of Whittlesea’s capacity to use short-term offset and developer funds for
restoration with Parks Victoria’s long-term mission to maintain the land into the future.

	Development of implementation case
studies with 8 partner organisations.

The first amendment
A change of government in late 2014 brought
changes to the names of some Victorian
Government departments. Many of these
departments were referenced by name in
the Regional Catchment Strategy which was
approved in October 2014. Also approved in
October 2014 was a process for the PPWCMA
to submit proposed changes to the RCS to the
Government for consideration.
Approval was granted by the Government in
April 2015 to update the Regional Catchment
Strategy with the new departmental names.
While this is a small change, it has provided
an opportunity for both the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA and the Government to work
through what is required in approving a change
to the Regional Catchment Strategy.

Next steps
For 2015/16 and ensuing years, work will
focus on:
	Keeping the Regional Catchment Strategy
up-to-date by periodically proposing
amendments to the Victorian Government;
	Maintaining and expanding partner
commitments to the targets in the
strategy; and
	Monitoring and reporting on the
implementation of the strategy and
progress towards its targets.

Urban growth in the City of Whittlesea is helping fund improvements in the quality of remnant native vegetation

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target

Achievement

Ongoing engagements with regional stakeholders and community sectors to
enhance integrated catchment management, catalyse partnerships and projects,
and identify and consult on potential revisions to the Regional Catchment Strategy

✓
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Coordinating
Government Grants
$184,000 from the
Victorian Government’s
Landcare Program
directed to community
grants

$3,904,233 from the
Australian Government’s
National Landcare
Programme directed to
priority projects

$250,000 from
the Australian
Government’s National
Landcare Programme
directed to community
grants

Coordination across the region

National Landcare Programme

For more than a decade, the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA has coordinated the roll-out
in this region of various Victorian and Australian
Government funding streams and grants
programs.

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA directed $3.904 million from the Australian Government’s
National Landcare Programme to priority projects in 2014/15. The projects were:

In 2014/15, this included $184,000 of Victorian
Government Landcare grants and nearly
$4 million from the Australian Government’s
National Landcare Programme. Resourcing for
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA to undertake
the coordination role was provided as part of
each investment agreement and was generally
in the order of 10% of the particular investment.

Victorian Landcare Program
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA delivered
$184,000 of Victorian Landcare Program funds
to community groups through the 2014/15
Community Grants process.
37 support grants of $500 - $1,000 each and
11 project grants for larger on- ground works
and community-based activities were provided
(as listed in the table on Page 16).
The grant applications were determined within
12 days of applications closing.

Project

Funding

Regional Indigenous Facilitator

$222,000

Regional Landcare Facilitator

$167,000

Demonstrating sustainable farm practices in the Western Port, Port
Phillip & Yarra catchments

$410,500

Building the capacity of farmers to adopt sustainable agricultural and
land management practices in the Port Phillip and Western Port region

$278,044

Building the capacity of Landcare groups and networks to facilitate the
adoption of sustainable practices

$167,000

Protecting the ecological values of the Western Port Ramsar site

$574,000

Protecting the ecological values of the Port Phillip Bay - Western
Shoreline Ramsar site

$152,000

Permanent protection of habitat to support listed species & communities

$167,000

Protecting and connecting listed communities and species on the
Victorian Volcanic Plains

$217,000

Protecting and connecting listed species in the Yarra Ranges

$257,000

Dandenong Ranges Wildlife Recovery, Weed Control and Fuel Reduction
Program

$1,000,000

Natural resource management planning for climate change

$14,689

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Community Grants

$278,000

Total

$3,904,233

$250,000 of the Community Grants shown in the above table was provided to community groups
through the 2014/15 the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Community Grants process. 15 projects
were funded to undertake on- ground works and community-based activities (as shown in the table
on Page 16). The grant applications were determined within 12 days of applications closing.
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Case study - Helping the Pentland Hills community help their local
environment

Case study - Grant helping the
Helmeted Honeyeater

Some of Victoria’s vulnerable and threatened native animals live in the landscapes to the
northwest of Bacchus Marsh, west of Melbourne.

The Friends of the Helmeted Honeyeater
are planting over 7,000 plants in two
degraded patches of Sedge-rich
Eucalyptus camphora swamp along
Woori Yallock creek with $28,095 from
the Victorian Landcare Program through
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s
Community Grants. These ‘habitat
enrichment’ plantings restore shrub
and tree species critical for nesting and
foraging so Helmeted Honeyeater colonies
can expand their range.

To help them, a “Connecting the Biolinks” project by the Pentland Hills Landcare Group
was supported with a $29,880 Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Community Grant funded
through the Australian Government’s National Landcare Programme.
The project will create and strengthen vegetation links between the Myrniong and Korkuperrimul
creeks running between the Lerderderg/Wombat forest and Werribee River. It will also fence
remnant vegetation that is away from the waterways to protect it from grazing by stock and
rabbits. This work is building on previous rehabilitation of 104 hectares with 60 landholders
along 29 km of local creeks.
Creating new habitat and improving the landscape will support key species including the
Powerful Owl, Brush-tailed Phascogale, Eastern Bent-wing Bat and Fat-tailed Dunnart.

Nesting and foraging shrubs had been
lost at these sites due to historic land
management, aging and senescence of
vegetation and, more recently, browsing
by deer. The Friends of the Helmeted
Honeyeater are installing a range of
deer-proof tree guards to protect the new
plantings. Plant species assessed as low
palatability to deer are also being planted.
The Friends of the Helmeted Honeyeater
enlisted volunteer teams from schools,
universities, local vineyards and Landcare
groups. The work will be completed in late
2015 and build upon nearby revegetation
established with the support of the Judith
Eardley Save Wildlife Association and
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA and
environmental weed control conducted by
Melbourne Water and Parks Victoria.

All ages turn out to help create vegetation links at the Pentland Hills Landcare Group planting day

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Administration costs of grants are minimised with 10% or less of project funds
spent on PPWCMA administration
Grant applications are determined within one month of being received

Achievement

✓
✓

Volunteers joined the Friends of the Helmeted
Honeyeater to improve the habitat for Victoria’s
bird emblem
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Community grants awarded in 2014/15
Victorian Government grant recipients
Andersons Creek Catchment Area Landcare Group
Arthurs Creek District Landcare Group

$500
$12,350

Australian Government grant recipients
Bass Coast Landcare Network

Funding
$6,250

Bass Valley Landcare Group

$6,325

Balcombe and Moorooduc Landcare Group

$500

Christmas Hills Landcare Group

$29,718

Bass Valley Landcare Group

$500

French Island Landcare Group

$10,000

Brisbane Ranges Landcare Group

$500

Friends of Braeside Park

$9,500

Bunyip Landcare Group

$500

Greendale Wombat Landcare Group

$20,200

Cannibal Creek Landcare

$500

Merri Creek Management Committee Inc

$10,000

Cardinia Catchment Landcare Group

$500

Mornington Peninsula Landcare Network

$3,700

Devilbend Landcare Group

$500

Mt Rothwell Landcare Volunteers Inc

$16,280

Dunmoochin Landcare Group

$500

Parwan Landcare Group

$29,500

Dunns Creek Landcare Group

$500

Pentland Hills Landcare Group

$29,880

French Island Landcare Group

$500

Rowsley Landcare Group

$28,400

Friends of Steele Creek

$18,970

Southern Ranges Environment Alliance

$5,040

Friends of the Helmeted Honeyeater Inc

$28,095

Western Port Catchment Landcare Network Inc

$25,170

Mornington Peninsula Equine Landcare Group
Mt Eliza Association for Environmental Care

$500
$8,712

Jindivick Landcare Group Inc.

$500

Jumping Creek Landcare Group

$500

Main Creek Catchment Landcare Group

$500

Manton & Stony Creek Landcare Group

$500

Merricks Coolart Catchment Group

$500

Moorabool Landcare Network

$500

Mornington Peninsula Landcare Network

$500

Mt Lyall Landcare Group

$500

Mt Toolebewong & District Landcare Group
Phillip Island Landcare Group

$500
$29,400

Red Hill South Landcare Group

$500

Riddells Creek Landcare Group

$11,820

Sheepwash Creek Catchment Landcare Group

$500

Southwest Mornington Peninsula Landcare Group

$500

Strathewen Landcare Group

$500

Sunbury Landcare Association

$500

Toomuc Landcare Group

$500

Triholm Landcare Group

$500

Upper Deep Creek Landcare Network

$500

Upper Maribyrnong Catchment Group

$29,970

Upper Yarra Landcare Group

$500

Victorian National Parks Association

$7,480

Warranwood Reserve Committee

$1,440

Watson Creek Catchment Group

$500

Westernport Catchment Landcare Network

$500

Westernport Feral Alliance
Western Port Seagrass Partnership Inc
Westernport Swamp Landcare Group
Yarra Ranges Landcare Network
Yarra Ranges Women on Farms Gathering Inc.
Total
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$500
$13,300
$500
$4,500
$500
$183,537

Wurundjeri Tribe, Land and Cultural Heritage Council

$20,000

Total

$249,963
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Region wide projects
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Engaging Indigenous Communities - Regional
Indigenous Facilitator
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Supporting the Landcare movement - Regional
Landcare Coordinator and building the capacity of
Landcare groups and networks

Ramsar Protection Program - Western Shoreline
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Valuing our Volcanic Plains - Protecting and connecting
listed communities and species

Supporting sustainable land management - Regional
Landcare Facilitator and building the capacity of farmers
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Wildlife Recovery, Weed Control and Fuel Reduction in
the Dandenong Ranges

Natural resource management planning for
climate change
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Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Community Grants

15

Permanent protection of habitat to support the listed
species & communities

Demonstrating sustainable farm practices in the
Western Port, Port Phillip & Yarra catchments
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Supporting the
Landcare movement
Regular
communication and
support provided for
84 Landcare groups
across the region

During 2014/15, the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA continued to provide strategic support
and leadership for the region’s Landcare
movement. This support and leadership is
guided by the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
Landcare Support Plan published in 2012/13
and coordinated by a Regional Landcare
Coordinator position funded by the Victorian
Landcare Program.

Regional Landcare
Report Card
published

Landcare communication and
promotion
Regular communication was undertaken with
the 84 Landcare groups and 13 networks and
approximately 250 other community environment
groups across the region alerting them to a range
of funding and learning opportunities including
speakers and workshops on pasture cropping,
invertebrates, invasive species, Aboriginal land
management and behavioural change.

Regional Landcare
Network Leaders
Forum initiated

The diversity and value of Landcare in this
region was promoted by helping arrange 13
bus tours carrying 331 delegates at the 2014
National Landcare Conference. In addition, 10
groups and networks were featured in articles
in Port Phillip & Westernport CMA e-newsletters
and 8 groups and networks were featured in
editions of the Victorian Landcare Magazine.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Regional Landcare Coordinator Doug Evans assisted Landcare Groups at Conservation Action Planning workshops
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Annual snapshot of Landcare

Community Grants

Data collected from 48 Landcare groups and
9 Landcare networks was compiled into a
2013/14 Landcare Report Card. The report
card is available at www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au.
The report card indicated that Landcare in
this region is relatively healthy and better
connected than in the past with 75 groups
forming 13 Landcare networks in 2013/14
compared with 41 groups in 8 networks
in 2010/11.

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA delivered
$434,000 of Victorian and Australian Government
funding to community groups in 2014/15 through
the annual Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
Community Grants. Thirty-seven groups received
support grants of $500 - $1,000 and 26 larger
projects were funded to undertake on- ground
works and capacity building activities.

Helping groups plan and collaborate
In 2014/15, the Regional Landcare Coordinator
supported 26 Landcare groups to engage in
Conservation Action Planning to better plan and
target their projects in the future.
He also assisted 16 Landcare groups and
networks collaborate with other groups
and various agencies by helping to host 3
Catchment Action Round Tables.
He also initiated a Regional Landcare Network
Leaders Forum and hosted its first two meetings
in 2014/15.

Next steps
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA will continue
to pursue the directions outlined in the Regional
Landcare Support Plan. Funding from the
Victorian Government’s Landcare Program
for the Regional Landcare Coordinator role
and community grants is central to this work.
Forums for Landcare Network Leaders and
Landcare facilitators will be continued to ensure
collaboration and coordination across the region.
With additional funding from the Australian
Government’s National Landcare Programme,
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA will also
continue to assist Landcare groups and
networks develop Conservation Action Plans,
collaborate at Catchment Action Round Tables
and have the opportunity to access community
grants for local projects.

Case study - Bringing Landcare
Network leaders together
Behind the great work done by Landcare
every year are strong connections –
connections between neighbours at a
local level, connections between Landcare
groups within networks and, now,
connections between Landcare networks
across this region
In 2014/15, the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA’s Regional Landcare Coordinator
Doug Evans initiated a forum of the
leaders from the region’s 13 Landcare
Networks to discuss matters of mutual
interest for the networks.
Two meetings were held during the year.
The first focused on strengthening the
connections between the networks.
The second considered how networks
might coordinate their efforts to achieve
the optimum benefits from the various
elements of the Victorian Landcare
Program such as having facilitators working
with most groups across the region.
The new Landcare Network leaders
Forum will continue to operate in 2015/16.

The Bass Coast Landcare Network received a grant through the Port Phillip & Westernport Community Grants

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Deliver the Regional Landcare Support Strategy including coordination of
Landcare at a regional scale

Achievement

✓

Landcare Network leaders gathered to discuss how
they can coordinate their efforts across the region
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Supporting sustainable
land management
In 2014/15, 26
Landcare groups
were involved in
rigorous conservation
action planning

The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA is
leading 5-year, $1.75
million projects funded
through the National
Landcare Programme

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is leading
two 5-year projects supporting Landcare
and farmer groups to improve sustainable
agriculture and land management. These
projects are funded with a total of $1.75 million
through the Australian Government’s National
Landcare Programme.

Working with Landcare groups
The first project assists Landcare groups develop
high quality conservation plans and landholders
adopt biodiversity conservation practices.

In 2014/15, 3 sets of 5 facilitated workshops were
commenced taking representatives of Landcare
groups and networks through the rigorous,
internationally-recognised Conservation Action
Planning process delivered in partnership with
Trust for Nature. Groups from the Mornington
Peninsula and Western Port area went through
the full series of 5 full-day workshops between
December 2014 and May 2015. Groups from
the Werribee and Yarra Valley areas each went
through the first 3 of 5 workshops between
April and June 2015, and will complete the
series in August 2015. Representatives from
Parks Victoria, Melbourne Water, Western

Some of the participants in a Shade and Shelter workshop at Loch
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6 trials and
demonstrations of
sustainable grazing
enterprise practices
were commenced

Water, Department of Environment Land Water
and Planning, Birds Australia, The Nature
Conservancy, Councils and other communitybased organisations also participated.
In addition, 2 Catchment Action Round Tables
were conducted during 2014/15, one in each
of the Maribyrnong and Yarra catchments,
attended by 39 participants from 13 Landcare
groups, 3 Landcare networks, Melbourne
Water, Western Water, Parks Victoria and
the Department of Environment, Land, Water
& Planning. The Round Tables enhanced
the relationships and collaboration between
Landcare Groups and the local agencies.

Engaging farmers

Case study - Best practice
conservation planning for
Landcare

The second project assists farmers to adopt
sustainable agricultural practices by enabling
knowledge sharing and undertaking trials and
demonstrations.
In 2014/15, over 50 farmers were engaged
by tapping into 4 existing discussion groups
in Arthurs Creek, Philip Island, Mornington
Peninsula and Kongwak/Elipac. A further
17 farmers were engaged in discussions
about sustainable practices through the
establishment of two new “Romsey” and
“Myrniong” farmer discussion groups. In
addition, numerous field events were held
including two “Shade and Shelter” workshops
which attracted 49 people and a pasture
management field day at Romsey.
Agreement was also reached for trials or
demonstrations of grazing and pasture
management practices that protect remnant
vegetation to start on six properties. These
ongoing trials will be the subject of activities for
farmer groups in the years ahead.

Conservation Action Planning is a
rigorous, internationally-recognised
process that brings people together
to develop a shared vision and set of
priorities for local conservation work.
Farmers learning about pasture management at Romsey

Next steps
Numerous activities with Landcare groups and
farmers will continue in 2015/16, 2016/17 and
2017/18 with the funding allocated to this work
from the Australian Government’s National
Landcare Programme.
The Conservation Action Planning process and
Catchment Action Round Tables will remain a
focus for engaging Landcare groups. Promoting
the adoption of sustainable agriculture
techniques by farmers will focus on maintaining
the new discussion groups, sharing the
findings of established trials and identifying and
implementing new trials.

In 2014/15, representatives of 26
Landcare groups participated in series
of expert-facilitated workshops, sharing
and applying their local knowledge
to determine their vision, define
environmental assets, assess the threats,
set goals, build the ‘results chains’ and
plan priority actions.
The Conservation Action Planning
Workshops have been jointly delivered
with Trust for Nature whose focal
landscapes and focus on private land
aligns with many of this project’s target
Landcare groups.
Along the way, keen Landcare facilitators
and community members have had
extra tutoring to learn more of the
Conservation Action Planning process,
with three Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
staff and local Landcare representatives
planning to undertake intensive ‘Coachin-training’ sessions in 2015/16. This
will maintain momentum for the postworkshop components of the process –
implementing actions, monitoring progress
and sharing learnings.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Anthony Dufty with Pat Francis during a farmer discussion group gathering

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with supporting sustainable land management

Achievement

✓

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Sarah Halligan
and Ben Cullen from Trust for Nature assisting at a
Conservation Action Planning workshop
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Supporting sustainable
agriculture
Employment of a
Regional Landcare
Facilitator, funded
through the Australian
Government’s National
Landcare Programme

Regional Landcare Facilitator
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA employs
a Regional Landcare Facilitator funded
through the Australian Government’s National
Landcare Programme. In 2014/15, the
facilitator worked with a number of agricultural
industry groups across the region to advance
the understanding of profitable, sustainable
agriculture techniques and establish a number
of demonstrations and trials.

5 agricultural industry
groups engaged in
projects across the
region to advance
sustainable agriculture

Vegetable Growers Association of
Victoria

Mornington Peninsula Vignerons
Association

In 2014/15 in partnership with the Western Port
Biosphere Foundation, Mornington Peninsula
Shire Council, Melbourne Water, Parks Victoria
and Inghams, work started with vegetable
growers in the Watson’s Creek catchment
on the Mornington Peninsula to establish
demonstrations of nutrient management
practices that improve water quality in the creek
and that benefit the downstream wetlands and
the Yaringa Marine National Park in Western Port.

In 2014/15, two ‘compost under vines’ trials
were established on the Mornington Peninsula
with the view to improving water use efficiency
and soil health, reducing herbicide use and
reducing sediment and nutrient runoff into
waterways. A field day was held to share the
preliminary results with 50 farmers attending.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Regional Landcare Facilitator Karen Thomas at a Koo Wee Rup asparagus packing facility
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10 events to
increase farmer
knowledge held that
attracted over 540
participants

Victorian Strawberry Growers
Association
In 2014/15, regular meetings were held
with representatives from the Victorian
Strawberry Industry Development Committee,
Melbourne Water’s Rural Land Program and
the Department of Economic Development,
Jobs, Transport and Resources to update the
environmental best practice management guide
for the Victorian strawberry industry. Work also
started on establishing nutrient budgeting trials
to begin in 2015/16.

Balliang Food and Fibre Group
In 2014/15, a number of activities were undertaken
to enhance the knowledge of farmers in this group.
Ten farmers were supported to attend the 2014
Henty Field Days in New South Wales, a Facebook
training day was held to establish a page for these
farmers to share their farming experiences, and
work started with Melbourne Water to access
biosolids to use as a soil conditioner.

Fruit Growers Victoria
In 2014/15, fruit growers were assisted to
quantify the issues associated with native birds
and bats damaging fruit crops on the Mornington
Peninsula and in the Yarra Valley. This included
establishment of an email hotline to send photos
and report examples of damage.

Farmer capacity-building events

Case study - Compost under vines

The Regional Landcare Facilitator worked with
various partners to help run 10 farmer capacitybuilding events in 2014/15 which together
attracted over 540 attendees including:

In partnership with the Western
Port Catchment Landcare Network,
Compost Victoria and the Mornington
Peninsula Vignerons Association, trials of
compost applications under vines were
established on three vineyards on the
Mornington Peninsula.

	A “Feed me - a menu for healthy soils”
expo in partnership with the Western
Port Catchment Landcare Network,
Bass Coast Landcare Network, West
Gippsland CMA and the Department of
Economic Development, Jobs, Transport
and Resources that attracted over 160
participants;
	A “Pasture cropping” field day featuring
Colin Seis that attracted 20 farmers;
	The 2015 Women on Farms Gathering
with WinHort Yarra Valley members that
attracted over 230 rural women; and
	An “Indigenous Land Management”
seminar featuring Bruce Pascoe.

Next steps
The Regional Landcare Facilitator role and
associated activities will continue in 2015/16,
2016/17 and 2017/18 with funding through
the Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme.

The trials were designed to see if compost
would reduce weed densities and
therefore herbicide use, improve water
use efficiency and soil health, and reduce
vine stress on extreme heat days. Sensors
were installed to log soil moisture and
temperature every 10 minutes, along with
soil sampling for nutrients, leaf analysis
for nutrient uptake, and grape analysis at
harvest for sugar and taste.
The preliminary results of monitoring over
the spring 2014 and summer 2015 period
were presented at a field day at T’Gallant
vineyard in Main Ridge to an enthusiastic
audience of around 50 people,
representing wine grape and other fruit
growers from the Mornington Peninsula,
Yarra Valley, Moorabool and Goulburn
Valley growing regions.

Chris Alenson, Pauline Mele and Declan McDonald were presenters at the Soils Expo held in Pakenham in February 2015

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with supporting sustainable agriculture

Achievement

✓

Karen Thomas and Ten Minutes by Tractor winemaker
Jeremy Magyer speaking to field day participants
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Engaging Indigenous
communities
Continued employment
of a Regional Indigenous
Facilitator, funded
through the Australian
Government’s National
Landcare Programme

Regional Indigenous Facilitator
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA employs a
Regional Indigenous Facilitator funded through
the Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme. In 2014/15, the facilitator
arranged numerous events and activities to
improve the Indigenous cultural awareness
and understanding of Board members and
staff from the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA and from various other organisations
and community groups. The facilitator also
worked directly with Indigenous organisations
and communities to document their goals
relating to natural resource management
and agriculture. A coordinated program of
grants was established to help Indigenous
organisations undertake on-ground projects and
training to increase employment opportunities.

Improving cultural awareness and
understanding
Events and activities undertaken in 2014/15 to
improve the Indigenous cultural understanding
of people from the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA and various other organisations included:
	A cultural induction by the Boon Wurrung
Foundation held on country at Phillip Island
for people from Phillip Island Nature Parks,
Bass Coast Shire Council, the Bass Coast
Landcare Network and the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA;
	Discussions led by Bunurong author Bruce
Pascoe on Indigenous agriculture held
at Tooradin and Mt Rothwell with 120
attendees from various organisations and
the broader community;
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Improved cultural
awareness and
understanding for people
from the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA and
other organisations

	Instruction from Office of Aboriginal Affairs
Victoria staff on relevant legislation for
staff from the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA and partners in Maribyrnong Valley
projects; and
	Discussion led by historian Gary Presland
on the history of the Kulin people attended
by staff from the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA and Councils.

Indigenous people’s goals and
aspirations
During 2014/15, a study was undertaken
with Wurundjeri, Wathaurung, Wathaurong
and Boon Wurrung people regarding their
communities’ goals and aspirations for
involvement in land management and
sustainable agriculture. The study improved
the mutual understanding of priority activities
for the future and set a basis for potential
formal agreements between the Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA and the Indigenous
organisations.

Indigenous environment grants
In 2014/15, $75,000 of Indigenous environment
grants were awarded as part of the Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA’s project. This included
grants to:
	Wathaurung Aboriginal Corporation to
run 4 community, business and corporate
forums and produce two brochures
promoting its environmental services;
	Wathaurong Aboriginal Cooperative
to train 8 members of its Indigenous
Land Management Team in farming and
computer mapping skills;

$75,000 of Indigenous
environment grants
provided to Indigenous
organisations to assist
land management and
employment

	Boon Wurrung Foundation for the
production of a brochure and educational
film;
	Bunurong Land Council for development
of a website to promote their field and
environmental services;
	Willum Warrain Gathering Place at
hastings for development of a food and
fibre garden; and
	Wurundjeri Tribe Land Compensation
Council for radios and electronic mapping
equipment for its Narrap land management
team, and a separate grant for protecting
and restoring the Sunbury Rings.

Next steps
The Regional Indigenous Facilitator role and
associated activities will continue in 2015/16,
2016/17 and 2017/18 with funding through
the Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme.

Case study - Indigenous environment grant helps Wathaurong Aboriginal
Cooperative manage country

Case study - Bunurong author
Bruce Pascoe tells his story

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA awarded an Indigenous environment grant of $5,000
to the Wathaurong Aboriginal Cooperative in 2014/15 to enable training of members of its
Indigenous Land Management Team in farming skills.

As part of the series of activities to
improve Indigenous cultural understanding
and awareness for people from the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA and other
organisations, Regional Indigenous
Facilitator Rhys Collins arranged for author
and Bunurong man Bruce Pascoe to hold
3 interactive seminars.

Staff from the Goulburn Ovens Institute of TAFE met team members at the Wourdi Youang
property at Little River to conduct on-site training. The team members participated in units
from the TAFE’s conservation and land management course with theory and practical
sessions covering fencing, the use of chemicals and occupational health and safety.
The team members also undertook training conducted by a specialist company in
computer-aided mapping using Geographic Information Systems to enable them to better
plan, map and record their field work.

The first was conducted for Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA staff followed by two
public seminars held at the Tooradin Hall
and Mt Rothwell Sanctuary.
The two public sessions attracted
around 120 people including people
from 25 Landcare groups. Bruce told
a compelling story about what he had
learned from his investigations into
Aboriginal housing, engineering and
agriculture bringing together evidence
from within the landscape and accounts
of European explorers.

Members of the Wathaurong Aboriginal Cooperative‘s Indigenous Land Management Team on country near Little River

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with engaging Indigenous communities

Achievement

✓

Bunurong author Bruce Pascoe at the public seminar
at Tooradin
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Coordinating the
‘Grow West’ project
The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
has coordinated
Grow West for over
10 years

Landscape rehabilitation on a grand
scale
Grow West has improved degraded landscapes
around Bacchus Marsh, west of Melbourne,
for the past 10 years. Its vision is to rejuvenate
up to 10,000 hectares and develop vegetation
connections across the landscapes between the
Brisbane Ranges National Park, Werribee Gorge
State Park and Lerderderg State Park.

Grow West involves
numerous organisations
working together to
improve degraded
landscapes around
Bacchus Marsh

So far, Grow West has worked with landholders
on projects ranging from 1-100+ hectares.
In total, over 1,000 hectares have been
revegetated to improve erosion control, weed
control and the biodiversity values of the area.
Grow West brings together planners and
practitioners from numerous organisations and
community groups including the Moorabool
Shire Council, Melbourne Water, Southern

Volunteers of all ages get involved in Grow West activities to revegetate the landscapes near Bacchus Marsh
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More than
1,000 hectares
of revegetation
undertaken in the
past 10 years

Rural Water, Parks Victoria, Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning and the
Moorabool Landcare Network. The Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA coordinates Grow West on
behalf of the partner organisations by convening
an Implementation Committee, managing the
project’s finances and employing project staff
who lead the delivery of on-ground works,
reporting and promotion.

applications ie brochures.
Filename:
Grow West Logo Spot/PMS

Actions in 2014/15

Case study - Grow West
Planting Day inspires community
volunteers
Mono Positive Version

Grow West’s revenue was low in 2014/15
compared to previous years, totalling
approximately $65,000 including:

In July 2014, the 9th annual Grow West
Community Planting Day was held with
220 volunteers coming together to plant
thousands of trees.

This is the preferred represe
Grow West Logo for single c
applications ie Newspaper

	$15,000 from Balance Carbon on behalf of
the Merino Company of Australia, owned
by Lempriere Wool of the Australian Wool
Company, to undertake a community
planting day in the Pentland Hills area; and

The participants included local families
and community members along with
numerous volunteers travelling from
Melbourne for the day. Many are return
visitors to the Community Planting Day
and view the event as an enjoyable and
rewarding opportunity to contribute to
environmental health.

Filename: Grow West Logo m

	$70,000 from partner organisations
including the Moorabool Shire Council,
Melbourne Water and Southern Rural
Water to contribute to the ongoing planning
and coordination of Grow West.
Activities in 2014/15 included revegetation of
6.5 hectares of land with 6,500 seedlings at the
annual Grow West Planting Day in July and a
Grow West Mini Plant Out in August
As part of ongoing planning for Grow West,
a landholder survey was also undertaken
regarding potential future work to extend the
Myrniong and Korkuperrimul Creek biolinks.
The survey identified changes in landholders’
practices and perceptions towards biodiversity
in comparison to a similar survey undertaken
in 2009, which will assist implementation of the
next stage.

Next steps
In 2015/16, Grow West will celebrate more
than10 years of community action at the
annual Grow West Community Planting Day.
Efforts to secure major funding for revegetation
will continue. A list of landholders and sites
ready for revegetation is maintained to enable
implementation to commence immediately upon
the securing of new funds.

The site for this planting day was on
Yaloak Estate in the Rowlsey Valley.
Over the past 10 years, Grow West has
worked with Yaloak Estate on numerous
revegetation, farm forestry and remnant
protection projects and provided
assistance with grants, advice and links
to specialists and volunteers. The work
on Yaloak Estate has helped to suppress
Serrated Tussock in the area, reduced
soil erosion and sediment entering into
the local creeks and contributed to an
increase in the biodiversity of the area.

Mono Reversed Version

This version is only to be us
colours when a Single Spot
Mono Positive Version cann

Filename: Grow West Logo r

All logo files are available fr
West Coordinator, see 5. Con

Volunteers at the Grow West Community Planting Day

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Grow West project

Achievement

✓

Grow West Community Planting Day
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Coordinating the
‘Living Links’ project
Living Links involves
numerous organisations
working together to
improve environmental
connections in
Melbourne’s south east

The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
coordinates Living
Links on behalf of the
partner organisations

Living Links has
undertaken or
assisted more than
100 projects in its near
10 years of operation

Partnerships for a world-class urban
ecosystem
Living Links is a major environmental project
working to improve the connections between
the many parks, reserves, open spaces, coasts,
beaches, pathways, rivers, creeks and wetlands
in Melbourne’s south-eastern suburbs and to
make this area a world-class urban ecosystem.
Living Links brings together numerous
organisations and community groups including
the City of Bayside, City of Casey, City of
Greater Dandenong, City of Kingston, City
of Knox, City of Maroondah City of Monash,
City of Whitehorse, Frankston City Council,
Yarra Ranges Council, Melbourne Water,
South East Water, Parks Victoria, Bushwalking
Victoria, First Friends of Dandenong Creek and
Conservation Volunteers Australia. The Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA coordinates Living
Links on behalf of the partner organisations by
convening a Coordination Committee, managing
the project’s finances and employing project
staff who lead the delivery of on-ground works,
reporting and promotion.

Partners at the launch of the Hampton Park Community Renewal funding for River Gum Creek

Living Links has been underway for close to 10
years. In that time, it has secured approximately
$1.6 million used to develop a long-term
corridor plan and to undertake or assist over
100 individual projects.

Living Links Coordinator Sarah Maclagan presenting a prize to one of the junior winners in the photography competition
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Actions in 2014/15
In 2014/15, around $117,000 was secured
for Living Links work. The main activities
occurred at River Gum Creek. Building on
works undertaken in the previous year, Living
Links secured $50,000 from the Victorian
Government’s Community Renewal Flexible
Funding to improve the River Gum Creek
Reserve in Hampton Park. With this funding,
the City of Casey started creating a ‘Habitat
Island’ as part of a new environmentally-themed
picnic area and playground along River Gum
Creek. In addition, Birdlife Australia carried
out visits and excursions with local schools to
educate the children about native birds and
began development of an interpretive sign to be
erected at the new playground.
To promote Living Links to a broad community
audience, 8 educational events for school
children were conducted and two photography
competitions were undertaken. The “Summer in
my Park” photography competition concluded
in March 2014 and the “Weird and Wonderful
Wildlife in my Park” commenced in May.

A prospectus of over 70 projects ready for
implementation to contribute to the Living Links
vision was also maintained and opportunities for
future funding were actively pursued.

Case study - Frog Hollow
rejuvenated
Thanks to the tireless work of the Friends
of Frog Hollow and the support of Living
Links and the City of Casey, the Frog
Hollow Reserve in Endeavour Hills has
been completely transformed.
From an area that was once an almost
bare sporting field and water treatment
pond, there is now a picturesque frog
habitat, wetland and native reserve.

Next steps
Living Links will continue to work collaboratively
with the project partners and is actively seeking
major funding to support implementation of
the Master Plan. The Living Links prospectus
is being used to promote and advance the
implementation of Living Links wherever possible.

The rehabilitation project began in 2002
when the Friends of Frog Hollow secured
a Victorian Government grant to remove
weeds and plant native vegetation. Since
then, more than 70,000 native trees,
shrubs and grasses have been planted.
The City of Casey has also created
walking paths and a native wetland
popular with residents and visitors. Frog
Hollow is now rich in biodiversity with large
water birds including pelicans and black
swans as well as the smaller spotted
doves and little pied cormorants.
Through Living Links, the Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA helped to secure
funding for the project to continue,
contributing to the planting of 6,000 trees
and shrubs as well as several hectares of
weed removal.

One of the winning entries in the Living Links “Summer in my Park” photography competition

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Living Links project

Achievement

✓

Frog Hollow Reserve in Endeavour Hills
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Coordinating the
‘Yarra4Life’ project
The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
coordinates Yarra4Life
on behalf of numerous
partner organisations

Towards new habitat connections in
the Yarra Valley
Yarra4Life is a major environmental project in
the Yarra Valley that aims to protect, improve,
increase and connect habitat for native
animals including the Helmeted Honeyeater
and Leadbeaters Possum. A long-term goal is
to have habitat links from the Yellingbo Nature
Conservation Reserve north to the Yarra
Ranges National Park, south east to Kurth Kiln
Regional Park and west to the Dandenong
Ranges National Park, thereby expanding
the habitat range for these and other native
animal species.
Partner organisations working together in
Yarra4Life in 2014/15 included Parks Victoria,
Yarra Ranges Council, Melbourne Water,
Yarra Ranges Landcare Network, Friends of
the Helmeted Honeyeater, Trust for Nature,
Victorian National Parks Association, Friends
of Leadbeater’s Possum, Department of
Environment, Land, Water and Planning,
Wurundjeri Tribe Land & Compensation
Cultural Heritage Council Inc. and Conservation
Volunteers Australia. The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA coordinates Yarra4Life on
behalf of the partner organisations by convening
a Coordination Committee, managing the
project’s finances and employing project staff
who lead the delivery of on-ground works,
reporting and promotion.

Yarra4Life includes
a 5-year, $1 million
project funded
by the Australian
Government‘s National
Landcare Programme

Achievements in 2014/15
The major Yarra4Life activity in 2014/15 was
delivering the second year of a five-year, $1
million project funded through the Australian
Government’s National Landcare Programme.
This included the completion of an Ecological
Character Description, an Action Plan and
a Social Research Report. The first round of
incentives for private landholders in high priority
locations was determined targeting pest plant and
animal control and revegetation. As part of this,
13 landholders were assisted to develop Property
Works Plans which included identifying on-ground
works to be carried out in the year ahead.
Community engagement activities were
also undertaken to raise awareness of the
environmental values of the area. Twenty-five

Yarra4Life also
managed $320,000 of
grants funded by the
Judith Eardley Save
Wildlife Association

events were conducted including field days,
planting days and working bees.
Another major Yarra4Life activity in 2014/15 was
overseeing the delivery of the first Judith Eardley
Yarra Wildlife Grants.

Next steps
Significant landholder assistance and on-ground
work, as well as community engagement
activities, will continue in 2015/16, 2016/17
and 2017/18 with the funding allocated to this
work from the Australian Government’s National
Landcare Programme. In addition, Yarra4Life
will explore the development of an annual
community Yarra4Life event and the concept of
a Great Yarra Trail.

The Leadbeater’s Possum is one of two critically endangered species being helped through the Yarra4Life projects
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Case study - Community engagement at Wanderslore
One of Yarra4Life’s community engagement activities in 2014/15 was a seminar and walk at
the 10-hectare Wanderslore sanctuary at Launching Place at which 50 people learned about
wildlife monitoring and how they can undertake conservation work on their own land.
The Wanderslore property was gifted to the Trust for Nature in the 1980’s by Miss Constance
Coleman as a sanctuary for local wildlife such as wallaby, wombat, echidna, antechinus,
possums, bush rats, bats, reptiles and many birds.
Wildlife specialist Ed McNabb educated the participants on the calls of a range of local
animals with a focus on owls and mammals. Botanist Dr. Graeme Lorimer explained the
importance of monitoring changes in vegetation over time and described some techniques.

Case study - Judith Eardley Yarra
Wildlife Grants
In 2014/15, work commenced to
implement the Judith Eardley Yarra Wildlife
Grants provided to Greening Australia,
Friends of the Helmeted Honeyeater and
Warburton Primary School.
These three partners have shared in
$320,000 that was provided for these
grants from the Judith Eardley Save Wildlife
Association for on-ground environmental
works to improve the habitat for native
wildlife in the Yarra Ranges.
Greening Australia planted over 115,000
understorey plants across 3 hectares at
Yellingbo Nature Conservation Reserve
and Warramate Hills. The Friends of the
Helmeted Honeyeater planted over 12,000
seedlings and constructed 2.3 kilometres
of fence protecting 1.5 hectares of habitat
in and around the reserve.
The Warburton Primary School students
and parents removed weeds, constructed
paths and undertook revegetation to
establish a Sustainability Hub.
The Judith Eardley Save Wildlife
Association raised the money for these
grants from its opportunity shop operating
in Healesville manned by a dedicated
group of environmentally-minded
volunteers. The Association honours the
late Judith Eardley’s passion for native
Australian wildlife.

Trust for Nature’s Ben Cullen co-hosted the community environmental education event at Wanderslore

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Yarra4Life project

Achievement

✓

James Fraser, Bob Anderson and Sarah Maclagan
amongst revegetation undertaken by the Friends of
the Helmeted Honeyeater as part of its Judith Eardley
Yarra Wildlife Grant
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Coordinating the
‘Greening the
Maribyrnong’ project
Greening the
Maribyrnong involves
numerous organisations
working together to
improve the Maribyrnong
Valley environment

A long term environmental vision for
the Maribyrnong Valley
Greening the Maribyrnong is a major
environmental project aiming to revitalise some of
the degraded escarpments of the Maribyrnong
Valley through control of weeds and pest animals
and revegetation with native habitat. Its long term
ambition is to establish a nature link stretching
from the Macedon Ranges to inner Melbourne.

The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
coordinates Greening
the Maribyrnong on
behalf of the partner
organisations

Greening the Maribyrnong brings together a
number of organisations and community groups
including the Department of Environment,
Land, Water & Planning, Melbourne Water,
Parks Victoria, Brimbank City Council, Hume
City Council, Moonee Valley City Council,
Conservation Volunteers Australia, Lead West,
Melbourne Airport, Friends of the Maribyrnong
Valley, Friends of the Organ Pipes National Park

So far, Greening
the Maribyrnong
has treated 648
hectares for pests
and revegetated 274
hectares

and the Wurundjeri Tribe Land Cultural Heritage
Council. The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
coordinates Greening the Maribyrnong on behalf
of the partner organisations by convening a
Steering Committee, managing the project’s
finances and employing staff who lead the
delivery of on-ground works and reporting.

Keilor landholder Sam Maccarrone with an area of his property recently cleared of weeds and rabbits then replanted with native trees and shrubs
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Achievements in 2014/15
Through 2014/15, Greening the Maribyrnong
focused on consolidating works completed in
past years with follow up pest plant and animal
control and expanding the work area onto
new properties including along Emu Creek in
Wildwood. This included:
	recruiting 10 new landholders to participate
in the project who collectively manage over
500 hectares of land in the area;
	treating 101 hectares for rabbits and/or
woody weeds infestations, contributing to
a project total so far of 648 hectares; and
	revegetating 43 hectares with indigenous
trees and shrubs, leading to a project total
so far of 274 hectares.
These activities were supported with funding
from the Victorian and Australian Governments.
All of the work in Greening the Maribyrnong
involved significant collaboration with the
partner organisations. Of particular note was
the partnership established with the Wurundjeri
Tribe Land Cultural Heritage Council to ensure
Indigenous cultural heritage is well considered
in planning all works, and protected when
necessary, because the Maribyrnong Valley
is known to include sites, artefacts and
landscapes that are culturally important.

Case study - A Green Army
marches into the Maribyrnong

Case study - Protecting the
Sunbury Rings

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
secured an Australian Governmentfunded Green Army to work on weed
control and revegetation in Greening the
Maribyrnong.

The Sunbury earth rings are ancient
Aboriginal sites near Sunbury measuring
between 10 and 25 metres in diameter.
They may be more than 1000 years old.

The Green Army is employed and
managed by Conservation Volunteers
Australia while the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA arranges the sites and
the work to be undertaken.
The team of 9 enthusiastic young
community members started work
in May 2015 dealing with boxthorn,
thistle and other weed infestations
on escarpments near Keilor then
revegetating with Indigenous trees and
shrubs. Over 24 weeks, the team is
learning environmental management
skills that will enhance their future
employment opportunities while helping
the local environment at the same time.

Next steps
Significant new on-ground work will occur
in 2015/16 and beyond as a result of new
funding from the Australian Government’s
20 Million Trees initiative targeting the west
of Melbourne. The project will also carefully
monitor previous plantings and return to
augment them if necessary. Pest plant and
animal control works will progress along Emu
Creek. The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
Green Army will continue to support various
areas of on-ground work.

Members of the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Green
Army spraying weeds on a Maribyrnong Valley escarpment

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is
working with the Hume City Council,
Wurundjeri Tribe Land and Compensation
Cultural Heritage Council and Salesian
College Rupertswood to do sensitive
but important land rehabilitation works
at the Sunbury Rings. The rings are
threatened by erosion started by rabbit
holes that are then enlarged from water
runoff, made worse by the lack of native
vegetation cover.
A Sunbury Rings Group is committed
to working on 5-year rehabilitation plan.
The first step is to assess the rabbit
numbers and their contribution to the
proliferation of weeds and the ongoing
severe erosion problems. Dave Wandin
from the Wurundjeri led the discussion
on the severity of the land management
problems near the rings and on the
adjoining Salesian College and Villawood
Properties land. The Wurundjeri, Hume
Council, Salesian College and PPWCMA
will be working together to help preserve
the rings and regenerate the yellow gum
woodland to link the Wurundjeri and
Salesian College land with a vegetated
corridor to Jacksons Creek.

Members of the Sunbury Rings Group planning the
rehabilitation and protection of the rings

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target

Achievement

Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Greening the Maribyrnong project

✓
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Coordinating the ‘Ramsar
Protection Program’
The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
is coordinating this
5-year, $2.8 million
program

Partnerships to protect major wetlands
The Ramsar Protection Program is a 5-year,
$2.8 million program coordinated by the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA and funded through
the Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme. It brings multiple organisations and
land managers together to protect environmental
values in the internationally-significant wetlands
across Western Port and the western shoreline of
Port Phillip Bay. These wetlands are listed under
the Ramsar Convention.

It is funded by
the Australian
Government‘s
National Landcare
Programme

The focus is the control and eradication of
pest animals including foxes, rabbits, feral cats
and goats and invasive weeds such as African
boxthorn, blackberry and spartina. Partners
including Parks Victoria, Hobsons Bay City
Council, Mornington Peninsula Shire Council,
French Island Landcare Group, Phillip Island
Nature Parks, Western Port Biosphere, City of
Casey and the Bass Coast Landcare Network

Members of the Steering Committee inspecting some of the pest control works undertaken on French Island
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25,771 ha of pest
animal control and
1,588 ha of weed
control undertaken in
wetlands in 2014/15

plan and coordinate their pest plant and animal
control work together to achieve optimum
results across a large area. Community
engagement activities are also undertaken to
raise awareness of the environmental values
of these areas, as well as activities with local
Indigenous groups to enable their active
involvement in natural resource management.

Achievements in 2014/15

Case study - Indigenous Wetland Wardens

In 2014/15, the Ramsar Protection Program
dedicated approximately $653,000 to various
works that collectively managed foxes, feral
cats, goats, pigs and rabbits, treating 25,771
hectares of wetlands and 1,588 hectares
for weeds.

In February 2015, the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA teamed with BirdLife Australia to run a
5-day ‘Indigenous Wetland Wardens’ workshop. This training event for Indigenous Australians
provided participants with skills to identify shorebirds and an understanding of how to manage
and preserve wetland habitats.

Pleasingly, some of the monitoring activities
in the program indicated increases in the
range of important native species including
sighting of Southern Brown Bandicoots at the
Blind Bight Nature Reserve for the first time in
several years.
There was also a focus on strengthening
community relationships and awareness of
Ramsar values. A number of activities were
undertaken including workshops and forums
that collectively involved over 300 community
members. Highlights included:

Stage 1 was conducted in Altona and Stage 2 at the Willum Warrain Aboriginal Gathering
Place in Hastings with a mix of classroom-based learning and practical field activities at
important shorebird sites including Cheetham Wetlands, Altona foreshore and along the
Western Port coastline. Staff from BirdLife Australia, the Catchment Management Authority,
Parks Victoria and conservation rangers from Hobsons Bay City Council led the enthusiastic
group through a range of topics including shorebird ecology and identification, environmental
monitoring and pest plant and animal management.
The event brought together Indigenous Australians from a variety of backgrounds, with some
participants already employed or completing formal training in natural resource management
while others attended to learn new skills to assist gaining employment.
The workshop was part of the community engagement activities that form part of the Ramsar
Protection Program.

	A ‘Dog’s Breakfast’ event in Altona
in January 2015 at which over 120
registered dog owners learned about the
environmental values of Port Phillip Bay’s
western shoreline and how to manage
their pets accordingly; and
	The inaugural Indigenous Wetland Wardens
workshop which provided a number of
Indigenous youth with training regarding
wetland ecology and a boost for their
employment opportunities.

Clearing weeds from wetland areas at Phillip Island
as part of the Ramsar Protection Program

Next steps
Significant pest animal and weed control
actions by the various partner organisations,
as well as community engagement activities,
will continue in 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18
with the funding allocated to this work from
the Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme.

Some of the Indigenous wetland wardens group at St Andrews Beach where they studied Hooded Plover management

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target

Achievement

Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Ramsar Protection Program

✓
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Coordinating the
‘Valuing Our Volcanic
Plains’ project
The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
is coordinating this
5-year, $980,000
project

Working together to protect
grasslands and native species
Valuing Our Volcanic Plains is a 5-year,
$980,000 project coordinated by the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA funded through the
Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme. It combats invasive weeds and
pest animals and improves land management
practices on the Victorian Volcanic Plains west
of Melbourne to help threatened native species
including the Striped Legless Lizard and the
matted flax lily.

Milkmaid - one of the native plants found in the
Victorian Volcanic Plains
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It is funded by
the Australian
Government’s National
Landcare Programme

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA employs
a project coordinator to manage the project
including the competitive incentives for delivery
of works on private land. There is strong
collaboration with the Hume City Council,

$161,000 of incentives
provided to 26
landholders in 2014/15
to begin 4-year weed
and pest animal
control works

City of Greater Geelong, Melton City Council,
Corangamite CMA, Glenelg Hopkins CMA and
the Department of Environment, Land, Water
& Planning.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s project coordinator Kacie Melfi in the field with City of Hume’s Roland Herbert
inspecting work undertaken in the first round of incentives

Achievements in 2014/15
2014/15 was the second of the project’s five
years. In 2014/15, Valuing Our Volcanic Plains
allocated $161,985 to 26 private landholders
through two rounds of competitive incentives to
deliver pest plant and animal control under
4 year management agreements.
Events were also conducted to increase
community knowledge of grasslands and skills
in their management. A highlight was a ‘Fire
as a Land Management Tool’ field day for 45
landholders from the Greater Geelong, Melton
and Hume council areas interested in managing
areas of native vegetation through controlled
burns. The field day featured presentations from
an ecologist discussing how fire can be used

to manage areas of native grassland to reduce
biomass, encourage regeneration and facilitate
weed management, and from the Country Fire
Authority discussing how to plan for a burn and
how its officers can help.

Next steps
Incentives for private landholders and community
engagement activities to increase knowledge
and understanding of threatened communities
and species in the Victorian Volcanic Plains will
continue in 2015/16, 2016/17 and 2017/18
with the funding allocated to this work from the
Australian Government’s National Landcare
Programme.

Case study - Working together is
better than working alone
Partners involved in the Valuing Our
Volcanic Plains project regularly meet to
ensure collaboration in the planning and
rollout of the project.
In October 2014, they gathered at the Mt
Rothwell Biodiversity Interpretation Centre
to discuss and plan the second round of
incentives for landholders and a field day
on the use of fire as a management tool
on private land. Weed and rabbit control
works are being undertaken to protect
native grasslands at this site.
The project partners included the City of
Greater Geelong, Hume City Council and
Melton City Council.
As well as the joint project planning, they
also had the opportunity to participate in
peer training where they each conducted
a site assessment in the grassland areas
of Mt Rothwell then compared notes. This
peer training enabled them to adopt a
consistent approach to site assessments
in their own council areas.

Participants in the ‘Fire as a Land Management Tool’ field day inspecting grasslands on the Victorian Volcanic Plains

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Valuing Our Volcanic Plains project

Achievement

✓

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s Kacie Melfi with
Valuing our Volcanic Plains partners Ned Turcinov from
City of Greater Geelong, Roland Herbert from Hume
City Council and Ben Kroker from Melton City Council
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Wildlife, weeds and
bushfire fuel management
in the Dandenong Ranges
The Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA
is coordinating this
3-year, $3 million
program

Establishing the project
The ‘Dandenong Ranges Wildlife Recovery,
Weed Management and Fuel Reduction
Program’ was launched in 2014/15 by Australian
Government Minister for the Environment Greg
Hunt MP and Member for La Trobe Jason Wood
MP with the aim of involving communities in
local environmental work and improving the
environmental health of the Dandenong Ranges.

It is funded by
the Australian
Government’s National
Landcare Programme

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is
coordinating the program and, in 2014/15,
kick-started it with the following activities:

	Held a series of community events and
meetings to promote the opportunities for
local projects

	Established a working group involving
Parks Victoria Emergency Management
Victoria, the Country Fire Authority, Yarra
Ranges Council, Cardinia Shire Council,
Yarra ranges Landcare Network and others
to develop a community grants program

	Engaged the Community Weed Alliance of
the Dandenongs and the Wurundjeri Tribe
Land Cultural Heritage Council to deliver
foundational projects

Invasive weed Wandering Trad being removed from areas of the Dandenongs
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Over $1 million
of grants were
awarded to 29
community-led
projects in 2014/15

	Managed the first round of community
grants.

Grants for community-led projects
The highlight of the project’s first year was the
awarding of $1 million of grants to 29 communityled projects to undertake on-ground action over
the next two years. Activities funded in the grants
included revegetation, weed and pest animal
control, bushfire fuel reduction and community
awareness events to improve the environment and
reduce the bushfire risk in the Dandenongs.
The grants included:
	$95,000 to the Belgrave Heights CFA to
reduce the local fire fuel hazard;

	$36,000 to Sherbrooke Community School
to create a link for native fauna between
the Dandenong Ranges National Park and
Sassafras Creek Reserve; and
	$19,150 to Monbulk Landcare Group for the
rehabilitation of a site within the Sassafras
Creek Nature Conservation Reserve.

Next steps
In the next 2 years, there will be additional
grants offered for community-led projects as
well as workshops and events to provide training
and education in environmental and bushfire
management in the Dandenong Ranges.

Case study – Community-driven
weed control in the Dandenongs
The Community Weed Alliance of the
Dandenongs was contracted to deliver
one of the foundational projects of this
program. This local community group
will have $450,000 over 3 years to help
control environmental weeds including
Wandering Trad.
Work started immediately on mapping of
Wandering Trad infestations and removal
of it and other environmental weeds
from at least 17 km of stream sides then
revegetation of these areas with native
plants. Landholders began receiving
training and assistance to eradicate the
weed from their properties and work
started with public land managers to
ensure the weed is tackled on all fronts.
The Alliance also secured several Green
Army teams to provide some of the labour
involved in the weed eradication and
revegetation.
Jenny Saulwick, Secretary of the
Community Weed Alliance, welcomed
the project saying “Wandering Trad
is a huge environmental issue in the
Dandenongs. It forms a smothering
carpet and displaces native ground cover
plants including herbs, grasses and
orchids. This funding is a great boost to
our local community efforts. It will enable
us to literally gain ground from this weed
and replace it with native plants to keep
the bushland healthy and provide better
habitat for our native animals.”

Australian Government Member for La Trobe Jason Wood MP with some of the recipients of the first round of
community grants

Achievement against our 2014/15 performance target
PPWCMA’s performance target
Delivery of activities and on-ground works that fulfil the commitments associated
with the Dandenong Ranges program

Achievement

✓

Australian Government Minister for the Environment
Greg Hunt MP and Member for La Trobe Jason Wood
MP welcomed a new Green Army working with the
Community Weed Alliance of the Dandenongs to
control Wandering Trad.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

39

Catchment condition
The condition and
management of land and
water resources in the Port
Phillip and Westernport region

Introduction
This report provides a snapshot of the overall
environmental condition of the Port Phillip &
Westernport region – the state of its biodiversity,
marine and coastal areas, rivers and land
health. The report fulfills the Port Phillip
and Westernport Catchment Management
Authority’s (PPWCMA) responsibility under
the Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994
to submit ‘A report on the condition and
management of land and water resources in
its region and the carrying out of its functions’
to the Hon. Lisa Neville MP, Minister for
Environment, Climate Change and Water, and
the Victorian Catchment Management Council.

Key challenges for management
The perennial challenge in this region is the
large number of land managers and planning
authorities which each have a stake in the
management of natural resources. To respond
to this, the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
has focused on setting targets and identifying
accountable leadership in the new Regional
Catchment Strategy which will enhance
collaborative environmental planning, monitoring
and reporting in this region. Other challenges for
management of land and water resources in the
region have been:
	Continuing rapid population growth and
associated large scale land use change
on the metropolitan fringe which invariably
requires compromises in social and
economic values of the community and the
environmental values; and
	Climate change impacts which continue to
present new threats and uncertainties for
natural resource management and planning.

The condition of native vegetation in
this region
The extent and quality of native vegetation and
habitat is an important component of biodiversity.
Approximately 40% of the region’s original
vegetation remains and, of that, one third is found
in parks and conservation reserves. Forty one
percent of the region’s vegetation is classified as
‘endangered’, ‘vulnerable’, ‘depleted’, or ‘rare’.
As most of this vegetation is found on private
land, landholders who are willing and able to
protect biodiversity are vital in helping to achieve
regional goals for biodiversity.

The condition of native animals in the
region
‘Condition ratings’ for native animals in this region
were determined in 2008 through an analysis
of likely native animal species persistence
using sighting records. This research was
commissioned by Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA and undertaken by the Australian Research
Centre for Urban Ecology. The analysis indicated
that most amphibian and birds species were
persisting, whereas reptile and mammal species
have a less secure outlook.

The condition of marine and coastal
areas in this region
Water quality monitoring is undertaken routinely
in Port Phillip Bay and Western Port. Results
over recent years suggest that water quality
for both bays is likely to be in a relatively good
and stable condition. Seagrass monitoring in
Port Phillip Bay found a slight increase in overall
cover between 2008 and 2011. In Western
Port, current seagrass cover is similar to that
observed in 1959, 1961, 1971 and 1973. A
2011 report produced by Melbourne Water,
‘Understanding the Western Port Environment’,
reviewed available literature and data on
seagrass cover in Western Port and supported
an assessment of poor but stable.

Water quality in the waterways in this
region
Water quality monitoring for waterways is
the most complete environmental monitoring
conducted in the region. Data is obtained
from the Waterways Water Quality Monitoring
Network maintained by Melbourne Water.
Results over recent years indicate a stable or
improving trend for water quality in rivers and
streams across the region.
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The condition of land in this region
Approximately 80% of the Port Phillip and
Western Port region is rural land. It includes
premium-value agricultural areas and high quality
natural bushland, broad-acre farming areas and
rural-residential areas. There are various projects
underway by Government agencies, Councils,
Landcare groups, agricultural bodies and others
to protect and enhance land health. An important
influence on the land health in this region comes
from the continuing urbanisation of the landscape.
New housing and associated infrastructure
increase the proportion of the region containing
impervious surfaces and can reduce the land’s
overall capacity to support natural systems.

Summary of project outputs in 2014/15
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA directs
funds from the Victorian Government, Australian
Government and other sources to numerous priority
projects across the region. Outputs collectively
achieved with these funds in 2014/15 include:
	7.8 kilometres of fencing
	110.7 hectares of new vegetation established
	2,024 hectares treated to manage weed
infestations*
	25,967 hectares treated to manage pest
animals*
	43,194 hectares with changed agricultural
practices*
	56 management agreements in place
including conservation covenants and
landholder works agreements
	Over 5,000 participants at various community
and stakeholder events including the Grow
West Planting day, Ramsar Dogs Breakfast,
Catchment Action Planning workshops and
grants information sessions
	170 partnerships such as project agreements
with community groups, government and
non-government organisations, industry
groups and Indigenous organisations
	46 plans produced and/or implemented
including communications and
implementation plans as well as
stewardship agreements and the Regional
Landcare Support plan
	70 publications produced including the
Ecological Character Description and
Action Plan for the Helmeted Honeyeater
and Leadbeater’s Possum, newsletters
and facts sheets, and grant guidelines
*Total includes some areas counted multiple times where
there were multiple treatments undertaken in the year.
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Our business and culture
High standards
of business
management and
governance achieved

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA strives
for best practice business management, high
standards of corporate governance, efficient
delivery of its programs and excellent levels of
health and wellbeing of its employees.

Professional
development
activities undertaken
by all Board members

Board Meetings
Six Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board
meetings were held during 2014/15. The
attendance of Board members at the meetings
is summarised in the following table.

The performance targets in this area have been
achieved.

Board
meetings
attended

Governance

Board Member

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board is a
skills-based Board with nine members including
the Chair. During 2014/15, the Board reported to:

Neville Goodwin (Chair)

4 of 6

Jacquelyn Ross (Deputy Chair)

5 of 6

Peter Akers

5 of 6

	the Hon. Ryan Smith, MP, Minister for
Environment and Climate Change (1 July
2014 – 3 December 2014);

Kay Spierings

5 of 6

Arron Wood

6 of 6

Jane Jobe

5 of 6

Laura Mumaw

6 of 6

Greg Aplin

6 of 6

Sarah Ewing

5 of 6

	the Hon. Peter Walsh, MLA, Minister for
Water (1 July 2014 – 3 December 2014); and
	the Hon. Lisa Neville, MP, Minister for
Environment, Climate Change and Water
(4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015).
The membership and qualifications of the Board
are summarised on page 7.

Employee job
satisfaction increased
in 2014/15 compared to
the previous year and
is at a very high level

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board
completed a Board performance review in August
2014 and, as part of that process, identified
professional development opportunities for Board
members to strengthen individual performance
and the overall performance of the Board.

Board training and development
Through 2014/15, all PPWCMA Board
members participated in professional
development activities such as
information sessions, training seminars
and strategic discussions with partners.
The activities included:
	In July and August 2014, the Board
undertook an internally-facilitated
performance assessment process;

	PPWCMA Board meetings
through the year included strategic
discussions with partners including
the Commissioner for Environmental
Sustainability and leaders of
Parks Victoria, the Department of
Environment, Land, Water & Planning,
the Central Coastal Board and the
Frankston City Council;
	Other events through the year
featured discussion with various
other partner and community
organisations on natural resource
management matters of importance
for this region;
	In April 2015, a special workshop was
held with the Corangamite CMA and
the Victorian Catchment Management
Council at the Mt Rothwell
Conservation and Research Centre to
share information and experience on
our respective programs;
	Participation by some Board
members in Indigenous cultural
heritage sessions through the year;
	In February 2015, all Board members
participated in a Workplace Health
and Safety information session.
The outcome of the Board’s training and
professional development activities was
an improvement in the skills, expertise and
knowledge of the Board in various aspects
that are important for this organisation. It
also built on the excellent understanding
by the Board of the strengths of the
PPWCMA and opportunities for continual
improvement in the years ahead.
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Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board
Committees
A number of committees established by the
Board made important contributions to the
governance and compliance of the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA in 2014/15. These committees
each have a Chair and a Charter approved by the
Board, and report to the Board at each Board
Meeting. The membership and Charter of each
committee is reviewed on a regular basis.
The Business and Remuneration Committee
met on one occasion in 2014/15. The key items
addressed by the Committee were development
of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) Work
Program, assessment of CEO performance,
development of advice to the Board regarding
CEO remuneration and oversight of the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA’s compliance with
government policy.
Membership and attendance at Business and
Remuneration Committee meetings is detailed
in the table below:

Member
Neville Goodwin
(Chair)

No. of
meetings Independent
attended
member
1 of 1

Yes

Jane Jobe

1 of 1

Yes

Peter Akers

1 of 1

Yes

Kay Spierings

1 of 1

Yes

The Audit Committee met on 5 occasions in
2014/15. The key items addressed included
planning and oversight of internal audit projects,
oversight of implementation of the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA’s Annual Financial Statements
and review of its compliance with the Financial
Management Compliance Framework and Tax
Compliance Framework.
Membership and attendance at Audit Committee
meetings is detailed in the table below:

Member
Laura Mumaw
(Chair)
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No. of
meetings Independent
attended
member
5 of 5

Yes

Jane Jobe

5 of 5

Yes

Jackie Ross

4 of 5

Yes

Barry Hughes

5 of 5

Yes

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

Barry Hughes is a Chartered Accountant,
Registered Company Auditor in public practice,
and a partner in a firm in Wonthaggi. He has
extensive experience in the computer, printing
and personnel recruiting and labour hire
industries in New Zealand, the United Kingdom
and Australia. Barry has had responsibilities
in financial and management accounting;
marketing; sales; general management; and
was the financial director of a significant private
company. He previously served a 3-year term as
Chair of the Audit Committee for the Bass Coast
Shire Council.
The Committee undergoes an annual
performance review and as part of this process
identifies any professional development
opportunities for members, to strengthen
individual performance and the overall
performance of the Committee. The outcome
of the review is reported to the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA Board.
The Regional Catchment Strategy Steering
Committee met twice in 2014/15, to consider
a variety of structures that enable ongoing
oversight of the strategy by the Board
whilst including partners in decision making
processes. The Committee membership
included three Board members in 2014/15;
Arron Wood, Greg Aplin and Laura Mumaw.
A Community Grants Assessment Panel met
once in 2014/15 to assess the applications
submitted for the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA Community Grants program and develop
a recommendation to the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA Board. There was no Board
member on the panel for 2014/15.

Risk management
Processes for the identification, reporting
and monitoring of risks at the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA comply with the Victorian
Government’s Risk Management Framework.
Risk identification and management is a standing
agenda item on many meeting agendas including
Board, committee and employee meetings.
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Audit
Committee undertakes an internal review of the
risk management framework on a bi-annual
basis and internal audit reviews are undertaken
on a regular basis, the most recent completed
in January 2015. Results of these reviews are
reported directly to the Audit Committee prior to
submission to the Board.
The following Risk Management Attestations
are made on behalf of the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA:

Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA Standing Direction 4.5.5
Compliance Attestation
I, Neville Goodwin, certify that the Port Phillip
and Westernport Catchment Management
Authority has complied with the Ministerial
Direction 4.5.5 – Risk Management
Framework and Processes.
The Audit Committee verifies this assurance
and that the risk profile of the Port Phillip
and Westernport Catchment Management
Authority has been critically reviewed within
the last 12 months.

Internal Audit
Since its formation, the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA has engaged external professionals
to perform internal audits. In 2014/15 a
professional audit was undertaken of exposure
to fraud and management of fraud risk. Other
reviews undertaken in recent years include risk
management framework, compliance with the
Statement of Obligations, business operations,
financial management, project management,
statutory compliance, community engagement
and strategic planning. All reviews have
consistently reported that the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA maintains a high standard of
governance and risk minimisation appropriate
to the scope and scale of its operations.
Recommendations from all reviews are recorded
in a register and their implementation monitored
by the Audit Committee.

Neville Goodwin (Chair)
7th September 2015

Compliance
Corporate Plan and Annual Report
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Corporate
Plan articulates organisational targets for each
year and the key result areas against which
performance can be measured. The Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA Corporate Plan
for 2015/16 was submitted to the Hon. Lisa
Neville MP, Minister for Environment, Climate
Change and Water, in April 2015. A copy of
the Corporate Plan can be found on the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA website:
www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au

The Protected Disclosure Act 2012 (the Act)
enables people to make disclosures about
improper conduct within the public sector without
fear of reprisal. The Act aims to ensure openness
and accountability by encouraging people to make
disclosures and protecting them when they do.

The Freedom of Information Act 1982 provides the
community the right to access, as far as possible,
information held by the Victorian Government.

Under the Act, the Independent Broad-based
Anti-corruption Commission of Victoria (the
IBAC) has a key role in receiving, assessing and
investigating disclosures about improper conduct
and detrimental action taken in reprisal for a
disclosure by public bodies or public officers.

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA has developed
a Protected Disclosure Procedure which can be
found on its website: www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au

Financial Management Compliance
Framework
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA was
partially compliant with one and compliant
with all other applicable Financial Management
Compliance Framework Directions.

Statement of Obligations
A Statement of Obligations, issued under the
Catchment and Land Protection Act 1994, for the
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA, issued by the
Minister for Environment and Climate Change,
was in place for the 2014/15 year. No instances of
non- compliance were identified during the year.

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA fully
complies with the Catchment and Land
Protection Act 1994.

Freedom of Information

Disclosures should be made directly to the IBAC
by phone, in person, in writing or via email.
More information is available on IBAC’s website:
www.ibac.vic.gov.au

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Annual
Report for 2013/14 was tabled in Parliament
by the Minister for Environment and Climate
Change on October 14, 2014. A copy can be
found on the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
website: www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au

Compliance with the Catchment and
Land Protection Act 1994

Protected Disclosure Act 2012

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA has not
been notified of any protected disclosures
during 2014/15.

Freedom of Information requests
Requests for access to information and
documents can be made in writing by
submitting the Freedom of Information
Access Request Form along with the
application fee. This form is published
on the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
website: http://www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au/
about/freedom-of-information.aspx
From 1 July 2015 the application fee
is $27.20
The request should be addressed to:
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
Attention: Freedom of Information Officer
Level 1, 454 – 472 Nepean Hwy
Frankston, VIC, 3199

DataVic Access Policy
Consistent with the DataVic Access Policy issued
by the Victorian Government in 2012, the following
information included in this Annual Report will
be available at http://www.data.vic.gov.au/
in machine readable format after the Annual
Report is tabled with the Victorian Parliament.
	Board membership table page 41
	Committee membership tables page 42
	Consultancies over $10,000 page 43
	Workforce data table page 44
	Comprehensive Operating Statement page 52
	Balance Sheet page 53

There were no Freedom of Information requests
received by the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
during 2014/15.

Information on what the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA does in relation to the
Freedom of Information Act 1982, how it
acts, what information it holds and how to
access the information is available in the Part II
Information Statement, is published on the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA website:
http://www.ppwcma.vic.gov.au/about/freedomof-information.aspx
Further information regarding Freedom of
Information can be obtained by emailing
enquiries@ppwcma.vic.gov.au or calling
03 8781 7900.

	Statement of Changes in Equity page 54
	Cash Flow Statement page 55

Consultancies
In 2014-15, the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA engaged five consultancies totalling $156,549. Of these, two were less than $10,000 with a total
expenditure of $2,064 (excluding GST). The three consultancies valued over $10,000 are detailed in the following table.

Total approved Expenditure
2014-15
project fee

Future
expenditure

Consultant

Purpose of consultancy

Department of Environment & Primary
Industries

Yarra for Life Ecological character

$54,545

$54,545

-

Victoria University

Geospatial information study - GIS Cultural Mapping

$50,000

$50,000

-

Roberts Evaluation

Indigenous engagement

$49,940

$49,940

-

(excluding GST) (excluding GST) (excluding GST)
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Compliance with the Building Act 1993
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA leases all
its office spaces and does not manage any
buildings. Therefore it is exempt from notifying its
compliance with the building and maintenance
provisions of the Building Act 1993.

Victorian Industry Participation Policy
Act 2003

Significant changes or factors
affecting performance

This policy is applied when tenders are let of
greater than $1 million in regional Victoria. The
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA did not let any
tenders of this scale in 2014/15.

There were no significant changes or factors
which affected the Port Phillip and Westernport
CMA’s performance during 2014/15.

Disclosure of Major Contracts
Government advertising expenditure

National Competition Policy Compliance

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA has
incurred nil government advertising expenditure
for 2014/15.

Competitive neutrality seeks to enable fair
competition between Government and
private sector business. Any advantages or
disadvantages that government businesses
may experience, simply as a result of
government ownership, should be neutralised.
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA continues
to implement and apply this principle in its
business undertakings.

Capital projects
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA has not
undertaken any capital projects during 2014/15.

Information Privacy
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA values and
protects the privacy of all groups and individuals
it deals with. The Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA has a privacy policy in place that complies
with the Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014
(Vic). All personal information collected by the
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is held securely
and any disclosures are handled in accordance
with the ten Information Privacy Principles.

Significant changes in financial position
There were no significant matters which
changed our financial position.

The Port Phillip and Westernport CMA did not
award any major contracts (valued at $10 million
or more) in 2014/15.

Industrial Relations
No time was lost in 2014/15 due to industrial
accidents or disputes.

International Travel
There was no international travel undertaken by
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA Board members
or employees acting on behalf of the Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA during 2014/15.

Workforce Data
Category

Type

2013/14

2014/15

Headcount

FTE

Headcount

FTE

Employees

No of employees

19

16.2

19

16.1

Category

Full time

11

11

11

11

Part time

8

5.2

8

5.1

Gender

Male (Managers)

10 (3)

9.6 (2.8)

10 (4)

9.6 (3.8)

Female (Managers)

9 (2)

6.6 (1.4)

9 (1)

6.5 (0.6)

Classification

Executive

1

1

1

1

Manager

4

3.2

4

3.5

Age

Business Services

3

2.2

3

2.2

Project Coordinators

11

9.8

11

9.4

Under 25

0

0

0

0

25-34

1

0.6

1

0.6

35-44

11

9.2

10

8.2

45-54

4

3.6

5

4.5

55-64

3

2.8

3

2.8

Over 64

0

0

0

0

Note: Employees have been correctly classified in workforce data collections. Figures as at 30 June in each respective year; and includes Executives.
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The gender balance in Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA Board and employees, as at
30 June 2015 is shown in the table below.

Board Members
Male

2014/15

2013/14

4

4

Female

5

5

Total

9

9

Community Inclusiveness and Diversity
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is committed
to improving the quality of service delivery to
culturally and linguistically diverse communities
and values community inclusiveness. The
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s approach
is consistent with the Victorian Government
Community Inclusiveness Circular of 2009 relating
to culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds,
women, youth and indigenous affairs.

Employment and Conduct Principles
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA applies
the Victorian Government’s Public Sector
Employment Principles, as described in the
Public Administration Act 2004. The Port Phillip
& Westernport CMA ensures this by:
	Adopting policies and procedures that
are consistent with the public sector
employment principles;
	Promoting the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA values, which are consistent with the
public sector values;
	Requiring employees to operate under a
code of conduct which is consistent with
the public sector code of conduct;
	Providing regular Employment Essentials
training which focuses upon equal
employment opportunity, human rights and
the code of conduct;
	Ensuring that induction training focuses
upon equal employment opportunity,
human rights and the code of conduct; and
	Applying merit and equity principles
when recruiting employees. Internal and
external recruitment selection processes
ensure that applicants are assessed and
evaluated fairly and equitably on the basis
of key selection criteria and accountabilities
without discrimination.

Availability of Additional Information
In compliance with the requirements of the
Standing Directions of the Minister for Finance,
details in respect of the items listed below are
available from the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA upon request, subject to the provisions
of relevant legislation and policies including the
Privacy and Data Protection Act 2014 (Vic) and
the Freedom of Information Act 1982.
	details of publications produced by the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA about itself;
	details of major promotional, public
relations and marketing activities
undertaken by the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA to develop community
awareness of the entity and its services;
	a statement that declarations of pecuniary
interests have been duly completed
by all relevant officers of Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA;

The information is available on
request from:
Carolyn Nicholson
Business and Governance Manager
Telephone: 03 8781 7900
Email: enquiries@ppwcma.vic.gov.au

Maintaining a Healthy Organisational
Culture
Workplace Health and Safety
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is committed
to a Workplace Health and Safety (WH&S)
framework that reduces workplace injuries
and improves the health and wellbeing of the
employees. The WH&S framework includes:
	A comprehensive WH&S Policy, WH&S
Committee Charter, WH&S Procedure
Manual and WH&S Strategy;

	details of any major external reviews
carried out in respect of the operation of
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA;

	A WH&S Committee that meets at least
quarterly, and that conducts regular
workplace inspections;

	details of assessments and measures
undertaken to improve the occupational
health and safety of employees, not
otherwise detailed in the report of
operations; and

	A comprehensive WH&S induction for all
new employees;

	a statement of the extent to which the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA Committees’
purposes have been achieved.

Information that is not applicable to
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
	details of shares held by senior officers as
nominee or held beneficially in a statutory
authority or subsidiary;
	details of overseas travel undertaken (none
was undertaken in 2014/15);
	details of major research and development
activities undertaken by the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA (none were undertaken
in 2014/15); and
	details of changes in prices, fees, charges,
rates and levied charged (none charged in
2014/15).

	WH&S communications strategy;
	Ensuring all employees receive refresher
WH&S training at least once every three
years;
	Proactive management of the wellbeing
of employees through the Health and
Wellbeing Program; and
	Providing an environment where employees
are actively encouraged to report all hazards,
incidents and injuries.
The framework encourages a WH&S culture
where all employees are involved in the
management of reported hazards and incidents.
In 2014/15 the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA Workplace Health and Safety Manual
was substantially revised. All employees,
including Board Members were trained in the
new procedures. Refresher WH&S training that
occurs every three years was also conducted
during the year.

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
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Workplace Health and Safety (WH&S) Performance Indicators:
Measure
Hazards
Incidents
Injuries

Indicator

2012/13

Hazards identified

2

1

1

9.8

6.2

6.2

No. of incidents

0

9(1)

3(1)

Rate per 100 FTE

0

55.6

18.6

No. of injuries

3

1

4

14.7

6.2

24.8

0

0

0

No. of standard claims
Rate per 100 FTE

0

0

0

No. of lost time standard claims

0

0

0

Rate per 100 FTE
Average cost per standard claim(2)
No. of minor claims

0

0

0

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

1

0

0

Fatalities

Fatality claims

0

0

0

WH&S Committee

Meetings

5

5

5

Site inspections

5

5

5

(1)

The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA commenced proactively encouraging the reporting of all incidents; including those incidents that involve motor vehicle damage only.

Workplace Culture
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA and its
employees are guided by, and committed
to, its values of Vibrant, Reliable, Respectful,
Supportive, Valued, Focussed, Positive,
Articulate and Balanced.
Each year the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
participates in the People Matter Survey,
conducted by the Victorian Public Sector
Commission. This survey enables employees
to provide confidential feedback on how they
experience the Port Phillip & Westernport
CMA as a place to work and is an important
measure the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
uses to understand employee engagement
and satisfaction.
In 2015 the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
received a participation rate of 100%. The
2015 results indicate that overall, Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA employees continue to be
highly engaged and satisfied. The industry’s
future continues to be the biggest area of
concern for its employees.

Engagement Index
The Employee Engagement Index Measure
is used to measure advocacy, willingness to
contribute to the goals of the organisation,
commitment and job satisfaction. In 2014
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA had an
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2014/15

Rate per 100 FTE

Rate per 100 FTE
WorkCover Claims

2013/14

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

employee engagement index of 78% which
was higher than the industry average of 69%.
In 2015, the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA
engagement index has increased to 87% which
is higher than the industry average of 69%.

Job Satisfaction
The level of employee satisfaction has remained
high over the past nine years.

pursue efficiency gains across the business and
operate in a diligent manner whilst maintaining
focus on its values and the continuing
professional development of employees and
Board members.

PPWCMA’s
performance target

Achievement

Board performance report
completed and submitted by
31 August 2014

✓

All Board members participate
in professional development
activities relevant to the Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA

✓

60

Board charter reviewed by 30
June 2015

✓

40

Risk Register in place and
regularly reviewed

✓

All programs have a risk
management plan in place

✓

Nil non-compliance with risk
management plans

✓

100% completion of
all statutory reporting
requirements on time

✓

Each policy and procedure is
reviewed at least every five years

✓

100% compliance with all
applicable Directions

✓

Overall JobOverall
Satisfaction
job satisfaction
100

80
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0
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2014
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Industry Avg.

Outlook for 2015/16
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA will start
2015/16 in a strong financial position. The Port
Phillip & Westernport CMA will continue to
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Summary of performance
The Port Phillip & Westernport CMA manages
its finances in line with the Financial Management
Act 1994 and the associated Directions of the
Victorian Government Minister for Finance. The
Financial Statements included in this report
have been audited and certified by the Victorian
Auditor General’s Office.

Through 2014/15, the Port Phillip &
Westernport CMA focused on fulfilment of
its statutory responsibilities and contractual
obligations and achievement of its Key
Performance Indicators whilst maintaining low
operating costs across the business.

The 2014/15 Financial Statements show that
the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA received
total revenue of almost $5.7 million with a deficit
of $598,000 at year end. The deficit reflects the
Port Phillip & Westernport CMA’s expenditure
of 2013/14 committed funds plus expenditure of
a high proportion of 2014/15 revenue.

Five year summary of PPWCMA finances
2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

Victorian Government contributions

1,399,010

1,302,982

2,336,235

4,252,328

4,060,312

Australian Government contributions

3,904,233

5,100,428

3,858,260

3,476,000

3,056,000

354,190

547,560

926,145

1,155,108

746,900

Total Revenue

5,657,433

6,950,970

7,120,640

8,883,436

7,863,212

Expenses

6,255,471

7,057,375

7,929,105

8,131,948

8,101,279

Net Result for the Reporting Period

(598,038)

(106,405)

(808,465)

751,488

(238,067)

Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

(862,921)

170,633

(604,248)

796,383

(132,676)

3,240,360

4,195,170

3,920,097

4,571,640

3,800,056

725,476

1,082,248

700,770

543,847

523,751

Revenue

Other revenue

Total Assets
Total Liabilities

Pattern of PPWCMA cumulative expenditure over 5 years

PPWCMA revenue and expenditure in 2014/15

9
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6
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5
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4
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Financial Statements
Accountable officer’s and chief finance and accounting officer’s declaration
We certify that the attached financial statements for the Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority have been prepared in accordance with Standing Directions 4.2 of the Financial
Management Act 1994, applicable Financial Reporting Directions, Australian Accounting Standards including
Interpretations and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.
We further state that, in our opinion, the information set out in the Comprehensive Operating Statement,
Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and accompanying notes to the
financial report, presents fairly the financial transactions during the year ended 30 June 2015 and the financial
position of the Authority as at 30 June 2015.
At the time of signing we are not aware of any circumstance which would render any particulars included in
the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.
We authorise the attached financial statements for issue on 7th September 2015.

Mr Neville Goodwin
Board Chair
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Chairman)

Mr David Buntine
Chief Executive Officer
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Accountable Officer)

Ms Carolyn Nicholson
Business and Governance Manager
Port Phillip and Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
(Chief Finance & Accounting Officer)
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Comprehensive
Operating Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note

2014/15
$

2013/14
$

Victorian Government Contributions

1(b) (i), 3

1,399,010

1,302,982

Australian Government Contributions

1(b) (i), 3

3,904,233

5,100,428

Other Contributions

1(b) (i), 3

Revenue from Operating Activities

258,443

378,218

Interest Revenue

1(b) (ii)

93,019

126,155

Other Income

1(b) (iii)

2,728

43,187

5,657,433

6,950,970

Total Income
Expenses
Grant Payments

1(c) (i), 3

2,482,362

2,571,901

Employee Benefits

1(c) (ii), 3

2,038,688

2,338,475

Supplies and Services

1(c) (iv)

1,570,100

2,053,231

Consultants

1(c) (v)

156,550

85,514

Depreciation

3, 6

7,771

8,254

Total Expenses

6,255,471

7,057,375

NET RESULT FOR THE YEAR

(598,038)

(106,405)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE DEFICIT FOR THE YEAR

(598,038)

(106,405)

The above comprehensive operating statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2015
Note

2014/15
$

2013/14
$

Cash and Cash Equivalents

4

3,111,193

3,974,114

Receivables

5

90,218

178,462

ASSETS
Current Assets

Prepayments
Total Current Assets

13,430

9,304

3,214,841

4,161,880

25,519

33,290

25,519

33,290

3,240,360

4,195,170

671,427

Non-Current Assets
Plant and Equipment

6

Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables

7

308,146

Employee Benefits

8

376,364

365,081

684,510

1,036,508

40,966

45,740

40,966

45,740

725,476

1,082,248

2,514,884

3,112,922

Total Current Liabilities
Non-Current Liabilities
Employee Benefits

8

Total Non-Current Liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS

EQUITY
Accumulated Surplus
Committed Funds Reserve

1,201,031

1,137,017

1,313,853

1,975,905

2,514,884

3,112,922

1(k), 10 & 11

-

-

1(m), 12

-

-

1(n), 9

TOTAL EQUITY

Commitments
Contingent Liabilities and Assets
The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statement of changes
in equity
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015
Committed
Funds
Reserve

Accumulated
Surplus

Total

$

$

$

1,975,156

1,244,171

3,219,327

749

(749)

-

-

(106,405)

(106,405)

Balance at 30 June 2014

1,975,905

1,137,017

3,112,922

Balance at 1 July 2014

1,975,905

1,137,017

3,112,922

(662,052)

662,052

-

-

(598,038)

(598,038)

1,313,853

1,201,031

2,514,884

Note
Balance at 1 July 2013

Transfer from/to accumulated surplus
Total comprehensive deficit for the year

Transfer from/to accumulated surplus
Total comprehensive deficit for the year

Balance at 30 June 2015

4&9

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Cash Flow Statement
For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

5,303,243

6,403,410

88,366

116,913

354,068

317,952

5,745,677

6,838,275

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
Receipts
Government and other Contributions
Interest Received
Other Receipts
Total Receipts

Payments
Employees

(2,032,179)

(2,424,043)

Grants

(2,482,362)

(2,571,901)

Suppliers and Other Payments

(1,746,686)

(1,273,949)

(347,371)*

(397,749)*

(6,608,598)

(6,667,642)

(862,921)

170,633

Payments for Plant and Equipment

-

(2,103)

NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-

(2,103)

Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

(862,921)

168,530

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

3,974,114

3,805,584

3,111,193

3,974,114

Goods & Services Tax Paid to ATO (on a net basis)
Total Payments

NET CASH (OUTFLOW) / INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

13

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF FINANCIAL YEAR

4

*Goods and services tax received from ATO is presented on a net basis.
The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015

Formation of the Authority

Statement of compliance

(iv) Classification between current and non-current

The Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority (“the Authority”) was
established under the Catchment and Land
Protection Act 1994 on 29 October 2002.
On that date the Authority acquired all the
designated property, rights, liabilities, obligations,
powers and functions of the Catchment and
Land Protection Board, which was abolished on
the constitution of the Authority.

Notwithstanding that the general purpose
financial statements have been prepared on the
above basis; the Authority has not been fully
compliant with one of the Standing Directions of
the Minister of Finance which are issued pursuant
to section 8 of the Financial Management Act
1994. Specifically, the Authority has not fully
complied with Standing Direction 4.5.6: Treasury
Risk Management, which requires all public sector
entities to undertake investments (in excess of $2
million) with a financial institution that is either a
State owned entity or has a credit rating, assigned
by a reputable rating agency, that is the same as
or better than the State of Victoria.

In the determination of whether an asset or
liability is current or non-current, consideration
is given to the time when each asset or liability
is expected to be realised or paid. The asset or
liability is classified as current if it is expected to
be turned over within the next twelve months,
being the Authority’s operational cycle, apart from
employee benefits provision refer to note 1(j).

As at 30 June 2015, the Authority had $2.25
million invested with an approved deposit taking
financial institution, of which at least $250,000
should have been invested with a financial
institution that was either State owned or had
a credit rating assigned by a reputable rating
agency that is the same as or better than the
State of Victoria. The Authority is working to
remediate this non-compliance going forward.

(vi) Accounting estimates

Principal Activities
The principal activities of the Authority are
the preparation of a Regional Catchment
Strategy, coordinating and monitoring the
implementation of the Regional Catchment
Strategy, promoting community awareness
of natural resource management and the
provision of advice to the State Government
on matters relating to catchment and land
management and protection.

Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies
1(a) Basis of Accounting
(i) General
This financial report of the Authority is a general
purpose financial report that consists of a
Comprehensive Operating Statement, Balance
Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
Flow Statement and notes accompanying
these statements for the period ending 30 June
2015. The general purpose financial report has
been prepared in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards (AASs), Interpretations
and other authoritative pronouncements of the
Australian Accounting Standards Board and the
requirements of the Financial Management Act
1994 and applicable Ministerial Directions. The
Authority is a not for-profit entity for the purpose
of preparing the financial report.
Where appropriate, those AASs paragraphs
applicable to not-for-profit entities have been
applied.
The accrual basis of accounting has been applied
in the preparation of these financial statements
whereby assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses are recognised in the reporting period
to which they relate, regardless of when cash is
received or paid. The financial report has been
prepared on a going concern basis.
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The annual financial statements were authorised
for issue by the Board on 7th September, 2015.
The principal address is:
Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment
Management Authority
Level 1, Landmark Corporate Centre
454-472 Nepean Highway
Frankston, VIC 3199
(ii) Accounting policies
Accounting policies are selected and applied
in a manner which ensures that the resulting
financial information satisfies the concepts of
relevance and reliability, thereby ensuring that
the substance of the underlying transactions or
other events is reported.
Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies
applied are consistent with those of the prior year.
Where appropriate, comparative figures have
been amended to align with current presentation
and disclosure.
(iii) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in this financial report are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the Authority operates (‘the
functional currency’). The financial statements
are presented in Australian dollars, which is the
Authority’s functional and presentation currency.

(v) Historical cost convention
These financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, with the
exception of certain classes of property, plant
and equipment, detailed in note 1(g).

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with AAS’s requires the use of certain
accounting estimates that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the entity’s
accounting policies.
(vii) Financial statement presentation
The Authority has applied the revised AASB
101 Presentation of Financial Statements
which became effective for reporting periods
beginning, on or after, 1 July 2014, and AASB
1054 Australian Additional Disclosures which
became effective for reporting periods beginning
on, or after, 1 July 2014.
(viii) Changes in accounting policies
Subsequent to the 2013-14 reporting period,
the following new and revised Standards have
been adopted in the current period with their
financial impact detailed as below.
AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
AASB 10 provides a new approach to determine
whether an entity has control over an entity, and
therefore must present consolidated financial
statements. The new approach requires the
satisfaction of all three criteria for control to exist
over an entity for financial reporting purposes:
(a) The investor has power over the investee
(b) The investor has exposure, or rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the
investee; and

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies – continued
(c) The investor has the ability to use its power
over the investee to affect the amount of
investor’s returns.
Based on the new criteria prescribed in AASB
10, the Authority has reviewed the existing
arrangements to determine if there are any
additional entities that need to be consolidated
into the group. The Authority has concluded that
there are no additional entities that have met
the control criteria and has not been required to
amend the financial statements.
AASB 11 Joint Ventures
In accordance with AASB 11, there are two
types of joint arrangements, i.e. joint operations
and joint ventures. Joint operations arise where
the investors have rights to the assets and
obligations for the liabilities of an arrangement.
A joint operator accounts for its share of the
assets, liabilities, revenue an expenses. Join
ventures arise where the investors have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement; joint ventures
are accounted for under the equity method.
Proportionate consolidation of joint ventures is
no longer permitted.
The Authority has reviewed is existing contractual
arrangements with other entities to ensure they
are aligned with the new classifications under
AASB 11. The Authority has reviewed its existing
contractual arrangements and there has been no
need to amend the financial statements.
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests
AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
prescribes the disclosure requirements for an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates,
joint arrangements and extends to the entity’s
association with unconsolidated structured
entities. The Authority does not have any
interests in associates or joint ventures.

1(b) Income from transactions
(i) Government Grants and Other Contributions
Government grants and other contributions for the
financial year are recognised as operating revenue
on receipt or when the Authority obtains control of
the contribution and meets certain other criteria as
outlined by AASB 1004 Contributions, whichever
is the sooner, and disclosed in the Comprehensive
Operating Statement as Government Grants and
Other Contributions.

Contributions are both general purpose (not
subject to conditions regarding their use) and
specific purpose (paid for a particular purpose
and/or have conditions attached regarding their
use). Where such contributions are for a particular
purpose they are reported and administered as
committed project funds (refer to Note 9).
(ii) Interest
Interest revenue is recognised when using the
effective interest rate method, in the period in
which it is earned.
(iii) Other income
Other income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

1(c) Expenses from transactions
Expenses are recognised as they are incurred and
reported in the financial year to which they relate.
(i) Grant Payments
Grants and other transfers to third parties are
recognised as an expense in the reporting
period in which they are paid or payable. They
include transactions such as: grants, subsidies,
personal benefit payments made in cash to
individuals; other transfer payments made to
State-owned agencies, local government, nongovernment schools, and community groups.

(iv) Supplies and services
Supplies and services expenses are recognised
as an expense in the reporting period in which
they are incurred. These include the general
day-to-day running costs incurred in normal
operations (excluding consultants that are
reported separately).
(v) Consultants
Consultants’ expenses are recognised as an
expense in the reporting period in which they
are incurred. These include the costs to engage
consultants to perform discrete tasks for the
authority that facilitates decision making through
provision of expert analysis and advice; and/
or the development of a written report or other
intellectual output.

1(d) Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets
Cash and cash equivalents on the Balance
Sheet include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other shortterm, highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, which are
held for the purpose of meeting short term
cash commitments rather than for investment
purposes and are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

(ii) Employee Expenses

1(e) Receivables

These expenses include all costs related
to employment (other than superannuation
which is accounted for separately) including
wages and salaries, fringe benefits tax, leave
entitlements, redundancy payments and
WorkCover premiums.

Receivables consist of:

(iii) Superannuation
The amount charged to the Comprehensive
Operating Statement in respect of superannuation
represents contributions made or due by the
Authority to the relevant superannuation plans in
respect to the services of the Authority’s staff (both
past and present). Superannuation contributions
are made to the plans based on the relevant
rules of each plan and any relevant compulsory
superannuation requirements that the Authority is
required to comply with.

	contractual receivables, such as debtors
in relation to goods and services, and
accrued investment income; and
	statutory receivables, such as amounts
owing from the Victorian Government and
Goods and Services Tax (GST) input tax
credits recoverable.
Contractual receivables are classified as
financial instruments and categorised as loans
and receivables.
Statutory receivables, are recognised and
measured similarly to contractual receivables
(except for impairment), but are not classified as
financial instruments because they do not arise
from a contract.
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Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies – continued
Contractual receivables are recognised initially
at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, less an allowance for impaired
receivables. Trade receivables are due for
settlement no more than 30 days from the date
of recognition for all debtors.
Collectability of contractual receivables is
reviewed on an ongoing basis. A provision for
doubtful debts is established when there is
objective evidence that the Authority will not
be able to collect all amounts due according to
the original terms of receivables. The amount
of the provision is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate. Debts which are
known to be uncollectible (bad debts) are written
off in the period in which they are recognised.

1(f) Prepayments
Prepayments represent payments in advance
of receipt of goods or services or that part of
expenditure made in one accounting period
covering a term extending beyond that period.

1(g) Plant & Equipment
(i) Recognition of Plant & Equipment
Plant and equipment represent non-current assets
comprising furniture, equipment, computers
and accessories, used by the Authority in its
operations. Items with a cost or value in excess
of $1,000 and a useful life of more than one year
are recognised as an asset (2013-14 $1000).
Items with a cost or value less than $1,000 are
expensed in the current period (2013-14 $1000).
(ii) Measurement of Non-Current Physical Assets
All non-current physical assets are recognised
initially at cost and subsequently revalued at
fair value less accumulated depreciation and
impairment in accordance with the requirements
of Financial Reporting Direction (FRD) 103F
Non-current Physical Assets.
Revaluations are conducted in accordance with
FRD 103F. Scheduled revaluation is undertaken
every five years with an annual assessment
of fair value to determine if it is materially
different to the carrying value. If the difference
to carrying value is greater than 10 per cent, a
management revaluation is undertaken while
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a movement greater than 40 per cent will
normally involve an Approved Valuer (usually the
Valuer General of Victoria) to perform detailed
assessment of the fair value. If the movement in
fair value since the last revaluation is less than or
equal to 10 per cent, then no change is made to
carrying amounts.
(iii) Impairment of Assets
The recoverable amount for most assets
is measured at the higher of depreciated
replacement cost and fair value less costs to sell.
Recoverable amount for assets held primarily
to generate net cash inflows is measured at the
higher of the present value of future cash flows
expected to be obtained from the asset and fair
value less costs to sell. It is deemed that, in the
event of the loss of an asset, the future economic
benefits arising from the use of the asset will
be replaced unless a specific decision to the
contrary has been made.
A reversal of an impairment loss on a revalued
asset is credited directly to equity under the
heading asset revaluation reserve. However, to
the extent that an impairment loss on the same
class of asset was previously recognised in the
comprehensive operating statement, a reversal
of that impairment loss is also recognised in the
comprehensive operating statement.

1(h) Depreciation of Non-current Assets
All non-current physical assets that have a
limited useful life are depreciated. Where assets
have separate identifiable components that
have distinct useful lives and/or residual values,
a separate depreciation rate is determined for
each component.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line
method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts,
net of their residual values, over their estimated
useful lives, commencing from the time the asset
is held ready for use. The assets residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
The depreciation used for each asset class is:

Class of Asset

Depreciation

Furniture and Equipment

10%

Computers and Accessories

20%

1(i) Payables
Payables consist of:
	contractual payables, such as accounts
payable, and unearned income. Accounts
payable represent liabilities for goods
and services provided to the Authority
prior to the end of the financial year that
are unpaid, and arise when the Authority
becomes obliged to make future payments
in respect of the purchase of those goods
and services; and
	statutory payables, such as goods and
services tax and fringe benefits tax payables.
Contractual payables are classified as financial
instruments and categorised as financial
liabilities at amortised cost. Statutory payables
are recognised and measured similarly to
contractual payables, but are not classified as
financial instruments and not included in the
category of financial liabilities at amortised cost,
because they do not arise from a contract. The
contractual payables are unsecured and are
usually paid within 30 days of recognition.

1(j) Employee Benefits
Provision is made for benefits accruing to
employees in respect of wages and salaries,
annual leave and long service leave for services
rendered to the reporting date.
(i) Wages and salaries and annual leave
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including time
in lieu and annual leave, are all recognised in
the provision for employee benefits as ‘current
liabilities’, because the Authority does not have
an unconditional right to defer settlements of
these liabilities.
Depending on the expectation of the timing of
settlement, liabilities for wages and salaries, time
in lieu, and annual leave are measured at:
	undiscounted value if the Authority expects
to wholly settle within 12 months; or
	present value if the Authority does not
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies – continued
(ii) Long service leave

(iv) Superannuation

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised
in the provision for employee benefits.

Employees of the Authority are entitled to
receive superannuation benefits and the
Authority contributes to both accumulation
(defined contribution) and defined benefit plans.
Superannuation contributions are made to the
employees’ funds based on the relevant rules
of each plan. The defined benefit plan provides
benefits based on years of service and final
average salary.

Unconditional LSL is disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements as a current liability,
even where the Authority does not expect to
settle the liability within 12 months because it
will not have the unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the entitlement should an
employee take leave within 12 months.
The components of this current LSL liability are
measured at:
	undiscounted value if the Authority
expects to wholly settle within 12 months;
and
	present value if the Authority does not
expect to wholly settle within 12 months.
Conditional LSL is disclosed as a non current
liability. There is an unconditional right to defer
the settlement of the entitlement until the
employee has completed the requisite years
of service. This non current LSL liability is
measured at present value.
(iii) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date, or when an employee decides
to accept an offer of benefits in exchange for
the termination of employment. The Authority
recognises termination benefits when it is
demonstrably committed to either terminating
the employment of current employees according
to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal or providing termination benefits as
a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.

The Authority does not recognise any defined
benefit liability in respect of the plan because
the entity has no legal or constructive obligation
to pay future benefits relating to its employees;
its only obligation is to pay superannuation
contributions as they fall due. The Department
of Treasury and Finance discloses the State’s
defined benefit liabilities in its disclosure for
administered items.
Superannuation contributions paid or payable
for the reporting period are included as part
of employee expenses in the comprehensive
operating statement. For details and amounts
expensed in relation to the major employee
superannuation funds and contributions made
refer to Note 15.
(v) On costs
Provisions for on costs such as payroll tax,
workers compensation and superannuation are
recognised separately from the provision for
employee benefits.

1(k) Commitments
Commitments for future expenditure include
operating and capital commitments arising from
contracts. These commitments are disclosed by
way of a note (refer to Note 10 and Note 11) at
their nominal value and inclusive of the goods
and services tax (GST) payable. In addition,
where it is considered appropriate and provides
additional relevant information to users, the net
present values of significant individual projects
are stated. These future expenditures cease to
be disclosed as commitments once the related
liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet.

1(m) Contingent assets and contingent
liabilities
Contingent assets and contingent liabilities
are not recognised in the balance sheet,
but are disclosed by way of a note (refer to
Note 12) and, if quantifiable, are measured at
nominal value. Contingent assets and liabilities
are presented inclusive of GST receivable or
payable respectively.

1(n) Reserves
Reserves are amounts set aside for specific
project funding, capital, lease and other
commitments and are recognised in the balance
sheet at nominal value (Refer to Note 9).

1(o) Goods and Services Tax
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised
net of GST, except where the amount of GST
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian
Taxation Office (ATO). In these circumstances,
the GST is recognised as part of the cost of
acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of
expense.
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of
GST. The net amount of GST recoverable from,
or payable to, the ATO is included as a current
asset or liability in the Balance Sheet.
Cash flows arising from operating activities
are disclosed in the Cash Flow Statement on
a gross basis i.e. inclusive of GST. The GST
component of cash flows arising from investing
which is recoverable or payable to the taxation
authority is classified as operating cash flows.

1(p) Leases
Lease payments under operating leases, where
substantially all the risks and benefits remain
with the lessor and are charged as expenses in
the periods in which they are incurred.
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Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies – continued
1(q) New Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued that are not yet effective
Certain new AASs have been published that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2015 reporting period. The Department of Treasury and Finance
assesses the impact of all these new standards and advises the Authority of their applicability and early adoption where applicable.

Topic

Key requirements

Effective
date

Estimated impact

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

The key changes include the simplified
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets, a new hedging
accounting model and a revised impairment loss
model to recognise impairment losses earlier, as
opposed to the current approach that recognises
impairment only when incurred.

1 Jan 2018

The assessment has identified that the financial
impact of available for sale (AFS) assets will now
be reported through other comprehensive income
(OCI) and no longer recycled to the profit and loss.

AASB 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers

The core principle of AASB 15 requires an entity
to recognise revenue when the entity satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a
promised good or service to a customer.

1 Jan 2017

AASB 2014-1 Amendments
to Australian Accounting
Standards [Part E Financial
Instruments]

Amends various AASs to reflect the AASB’s
decision to defer the mandatory application date
of AASB 9 to annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2018 as a consequence
of Chapter 6 Hedge Accounting, and to amend
reduced disclosure requirements.

1 Jan 2018

This amending standard will defer the application
period of AASB 9 to the 2018-19 reporting period
in accordance with the transition requirements.

AASB 2014-4 Amendments
to Australian Accounting
Standards – Clarification
of Acceptable Methods of
Depreciation and Amortisation
[AASB 116 & AASB 138]

Amends AASB 116 Property, Plant and
Equipment and AASB 138 Intangible Assets to:

1 Jan 2016

The assessment has indicated that there is no
expected impact as the revenue-based method
is not used for depreciation and amortisation.

1 Jan 2016

The amending standard will result in extended
disclosures on the entity’s key management
personnel (KMP), and the related party
transactions.

The preliminary assessment has not identified any
material impact arising from AASB 9, as the Authority
does not have available for sale (AFS) assets.

(Exposure
Draft 263
– potential
deferral to 1
Jan 2018)

	establish the principle for the basis of
depreciation and amortisation as being the
expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits of an asset;

The changes in revenue recognition requirements
in AASB 15 may result in changes to the timing
and amount of revenue recorded in the financial
statements. The Standard will also require
additional disclosures on service revenue and
contract modifications.

	prohibit the use of revenue based methods
to calculate the depreciation or amortisation
of an asset, tangible or intangible, because
revenue generally reflects the pattern of
economic benefits that are generated from
operating the business, rather than the
consumption through the use of the asset.
AASB 2015-6 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards
– Extending Related Party
Disclosures to Not-for-Profit
Public Sector Entities [AASB 10,
AASB 124 & AASB 1049]
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The Amendments extend the scope of AASB
124 Related Party Disclosures to not-for-profit
public sector entities. A guidance has been
included to assist the application of the Standard
by not-for-profit public sector entities.

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 1 – Significant Accounting Policies – continued
The following amending standards are also
issued but not effective for the 2014-15 reporting
period. At this stage, the preliminary assessment
suggests they may have insignificant impacts on
public sector reporting.
	AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2010).
	AASB 2013-9 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Conceptual
Framework, Materiality and Financial
Instruments
	AASB 2014-5 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15
	AASB 2014-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2014)
	AASB 2014-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
(December 2014) – Application of AASB 9
(December 2009) and AASB 9 (December
2010) [AASB 9 (2009 & 2010)]
	AASB 2015-2 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards – Disclosure

Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 [AASB
7, AASB 101, AASB 134 & AASB 1049]
	AASB 2015-3 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards arising from the
Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality

Note 2 – Financial Risk Management
Objectives and Policies
The Authority’s activities expose it to financial
risks: market, credit and liquidity risks. This
note presents information about the Authority’s
exposure to each of these risks, and the
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk.
There is no foreign currency risk as the Authority
does not trade outside of Australia.
The Authority’s Board has the overall responsibility
for the establishment and oversight of the
Authority’s risk management framework. The
Authority’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the financial performance of the Authority.
The Authority uses different methods to measure
different types of risk to which it is exposed.

The Business Management Team identifies,
evaluates and manages financial risks in close
co-operation with the Audit Committee. The
Board provides written principles for overall
risk management, as well as policies covering
specific areas such as interest rate risk and
investment of excess liquidity.

2(a) Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices will affect the fair value or future cash
flows of the Authority’s financial instruments.
Market risk comprises of interest rate risk and
other price risk. The Authority’s exposure to
market risk is primarily through interest rate risk,
and is limited to “At Call Funds”.
(i) Interest Rate Risk
The Authority’s exposure to market interest rates
relates to funds invested in the money market.
The Authority does not have any borrowings.
The Authority has minimal exposure to interest
rate risk through its holding of cash assets.
(ii) Other Price Risk
The Authority has no exposure in other price risk.

2(b) Market Risk Sensitivity Analysis
The sensitivity analysis has taken into account past performance, future expectations and economic forecasts. The Authority believes that a movement
of 1% in interest rates is reasonable over the next 12 months.

-1%

Interest Rate Risk

+1%
Results

Carrying Amount

Results

Equity

$

$

$

$

Equity
$

3,111,193

(8,606)

(8,606)

8,606

8,606

12,683

-

-

-

-

240,714

-

-

-

-

(8,606)

(8,606)

8,606

8,606

3,974,114

(5,736)

(5,736)

5,736

5,736

118,742

-

-

-

-

611,589

-

-

-

-

(5,736)

(5,736)

5,736

5,736

2014/15
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Total Increase/(Decrease)

2013/14
Financial Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables
Financial Liabilities
Payables
Total Increase/(Decrease)
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Note 2 – Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies – continued
2(c) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Authority as a result of a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument failing to meet its contractual
obligations. Credit risk arises principally from the Authority’s receivables.
The Authority’s exposure to credit risk is minimal due to the characteristics of each customer. The receivable balance consists primarily of Government
entities and the risk of failure to meet their obligations is minimal. Receivable balances are monitored on an on-going basis to assess the exposure to
bad debts. The Authority has an accounts receivable procedure in place for the collection of overdue receivables.
Credit quality of contractual financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired.

Financial
institutions
(triple-A
credit rating)

Government
agencies
(triple-A
credit rating)

Government
agencies
(triple-B
credit rating)

Other
(min triple-B
credit rating)

Total

$

$

$

$

$

Cash and deposits

-

-

-

3,111,193

3,111,193

Receivables

-

3,029

-

9,654

12,683

Total contractual financial assets

-

3,029

-

3,120,847

3,123,876

2014-15

2013-14
Cash and deposits

-

-

-

3,974,114

3,974,114

Receivables

-

104,500

-

14,242

118,742

Total contractual financial assets

-

104,500

-

3,988,356

4,092,856

2(d) Liquidity Risk
Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Authority will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Authority‘s policy is to settle financial
obligations within 30 days and in the event of dispute make payments within 30 days from the date of resolution.
The Authority manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities by continuously monitoring forecasts and actual cash flows
and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and financial liabilities.
The Authority does not have any interest bearing liabilities.

2(e) Fair Value Measurements
Financial instruments comprise of Cash, Receivables and Payables. These financial instruments have a short-term maturity. Accordingly, it is considered
that carrying amounts reflect fair values.
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Note 3 – Revenue and Expense Disclosures

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

1,399,010

1,302,982

1,399,010

1,302,982

3,889,544

2,889,544

14,689

277,944

Victorian Government Contributions
Department of Environment, Land, Water & Planning
Australian Government Contributions
National Landcare Program
Department of Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population and Communities
Biodiversity Fund

-

1,932,940

3,904,233

5,100,428

15,227

70,000

234,505

294,000

8,711

14,218

258,443

378,218

2,482,362

2,571,901

2,482,362

2,571,901

1,441,700

1,650,510

134,988

154,101

Other Contributions
Corporate Sponsorship
Partner Contributions
Landholder Contributions
Grant Payments
General purpose grants
Employee Benefits
Salaries and wages
Annual leave
Long service leave
Employer superannuation contributions - note 15
Other

78,955

63,230

160,707

163,691

222,338

306,943

2,038,688

2,338,475

Computers and accessories

3,307

3,845

Furniture and equipment

4,464

4,409

7,771

8,254

2014/15

2013/14

Depreciation

Note 4 – Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand
Cash at Bank
Cash at Call

$

$

600

500

9,634

9,558

850,959

564,056

Short Term Deposits

2,250,000

3,400,00

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents*

3,111,193

3,974,114

* $1,313,853 of $3,111,193 cash and cash equivalents held at balance date are committed to specific projects for which funding has been provided to the Authority
(2013/14 $1,975,905 of $3,974,114) - refer note 9

The Short Term Deposits are bearing fixed interest rates between 2.09% and 2.12% (2013/14: 3.11% and 3.18%)
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Note 5 – Receivables

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

Trade Receivables

3,029

104,500

Security Deposit Paid

5,000

5,000

Accrued Interest

4,654

9,242

Current Contractual

Statutory
GST Input Tax Credit Receivables

77,535

59,720

Total Receivables

90,218

178,462

5(a) Provision for doubtful debts
As at 30 June 2015 there were no receivables regarded as uncollectible (2013/14: Nil).

5(b) Ageing analysis of receivables
Past due date but not impaired
Carrying
Amount

Not past
due date &
not impaired

Less than 1
month

1–6
months

Over 6
months

Impaired

$

$

$

$

$

$

Amounts owed by other
Government agencies

3,029

679

-

2,350

-

-

Other receivables

9,654

9,654

-

-

-

-

12,683

10,333

-

2,350

-

-

104,500

88,000

-

16,500

-

-

2015
Receivables:

2014
Receivables:
Amounts owed by other
Government agencies
Other receivables

14,242

14,242

-

-

-

-

118,742

102,242

-

16,500

-

-

5(c) Fair value and credit risk
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their value. The maximum exposure to credit risk
at balance date is the higher of the carrying value and the fair value. There was no significant exposure to credit risk at balance date.
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Note 6 – Plant and Equipment
6(a) Classes of Plant and Equipment

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

34,432

34,432

(28,923)

(25,616)

5,509

8,816

Computers & Accessories
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation
Furniture & Equipment
At fair value
Less accumulated depreciation

Total Plant and Equipment

6(b) Movement during the financial year

Computers &
Accessories

Opening Balance 1 July 2014
Depreciation expense
Closing Balance 30 June 2015
Opening Balance 1 July 2013
Additions
Depreciation expense
Closing Balance 30 June 2014

44,640

44,640

(24,630)

(20,166)

20,010

24,474

25,519

33,290

Furniture &
Equipment

Total

$

$

$

8,816

24,474

33,290

(3,307)

(4,464)

(7,771)

5,509

20,010

25,519

11,648

27,793

39,441

1,013

1,090

2,103

(3,845)

(4,409)

(8,254)

8,816

24,474

33,290

Fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at 30 June 2015

Computers and Accessories at fair value
Furniture and Equipment at fair value

Fair value measurement at end of
reporting period using:

Carrying
amount as at
30/06/15

Level 1(i)

Level 2(i)

Level 3(i)

8,816

-

-

8,816

24,474

-

-

24,474

Notes: (i) Classified in accordance with the fair value hierarchy, see Note 1(g).

Plant and equipment is held at fair value. When plant and equipment is specialised in use, such that it is rarely sold other than as part of a going
concern, fair value is determined using the depreciated replacement cost method. There were no changes in valuation techniques throughout the period
to 30 June 2015. For all assets measured at fair value, the current use is considered the highest and best use.
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Note 6 – Plant and Equipment – continued
Reconciliation of level 3 fair value

Opening Balance

Computers &
Accessories

Furniture &
Equipment

$

$

8,816

24,474

Purchases(Sales)

-

-

Transfer in (out) of Level 3

-

-

Gains or losses recognised in net result
Depreciations
Impairment loss
Subtotal
Revaluation

-

-

(3,307)

(4,464)

-

-

5,509

20,010

-

-

Subtotal

5,509

20,010

Closing balance

5,509

20,010

-

-

Unrealised gains/losses on non-financial assets

Description of significant unobservable inputs to Level 3 valuations

Computers &
Accessories

Furniture &
Equipment

Valuation
technique

Significant
observable inputs

Range
(weighted average)

Depreciated
replacement cost

Cost per unit

$3,000-$4,000 per unit A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
(2013-14 $3,000-$4,000) will result in a significantly higher or lower fair value

Useful life of plant and
equipment

5 years

Cost per unit

$3,000-$4,000 per unit A significant increase or decrease in cost per unit
(2013-14 $3,000-$4,000) will result in a significantly higher or lower fair value

Useful life of plant and
equipment

10 years

Depreciated
replacement cost

Note 7 – Payables

Sensitivity of fair value measurement to
changes in significant unobservable inputs

A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation

A significant increase or decrease in the estimated
useful life of the asset would result in a significantly
higher or lower valuation

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

Trade Creditors

125,955

523,507

Accrued Expenses

114,759

64,812

-

10,755

PAYG Withheld

38,559

47,916

Payroll Tax

10,092

11,922

Superannuation

18,781

12,515

Total Payables

308,146

671,427

Current Contractual

Other Creditors
Statutory
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Note 7 – Payables – continued
7(a) Fair Value
Due to the short-term nature of the current payables, their carrying value is assumed to approximate their fair value.

Note 8 – Employee Benefits

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

99,077

116,202

6,829

19,855

Current provisions
Employee benefits (Note 8(a))
Annual leave (Note 8(a)):


Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months

 Unconditional and expected to settle after 12 months
Long service leave (Note 8(a)):
 Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months

21,347

16,301

 Unconditional and expected to settle after 12 months

186,524

146,719

7,303

11,383

321,080

310,460

21,438

25,226

Time in lieu leave (Note 8(a)):
 Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months
Provisions for on costs (Note 8(a)):
 Unconditional and expected to settle within 12 months
 Unconditional and expected to settle after 12 months
Total current provisions

33,846

29,395

376,364

365,081

35,656

38,879

5,310

6,861

Non current provisions
Employee Benefits (Note 8(a))
On costs (Note 8(a)):
Total non current provisions
Total provisions

8(a) Employee benefits and on costs

40,966

45,740

417,330

410,821

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

Current employee benefits
Annual Leave

105,906

136,057

Long Service Leave

207,871

163,020

7,303

11,383

321,080

310,460

Time in Lieu
Non current employee benefits
Long Service Leave
Total employee benefits
Current on costs
Non current on costs
Total on costs
Total employee benefits and on costs

35,656

38,879

356,736

349,339

55,284

54,621

5,310

6,861

60,594

61,482

417,330

410,821
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Note 9 – Committed Funds Reserve
Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment Management Authority is responsible for the facilitation and coordination of catchments in an integrated and
sustainable manner. This is achieved by undertaking projects primarily funded by Victorian and Australian Government programs. The Authority receives
funding for specific projects which are guided by the Regional Catchment Strategy and delivered in line with the Authority’s Corporate Plan approved by
the Minister for Environment, Climate Change and Water.
The projects funded by the Victorian and Australian Governments can be undertaken over multiple financial years and funding is received at various
stages of the project life based on contractual agreements. At the end of the financial year there are some projects that have not reached completion but
will be completed within the contractual terms in future financial periods. At balance date the Authority has cash and cash equivalents that will be utilised
to complete these projects in future financial years. Refer Note 4 - Cash and Cash Equivalent for balances on hand.

Note 10 – Lease Commitments
Operating leases relate to office facilities, vehicles, and office equipment with lease terms between one and five years, with an option to extend. All
operating lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event that the Authority exercises its option to renew. The Authority does not have an
option to purchase the leased assets at the expiry of the lease period.

At 30 June 2015 the Authority had the following lease commitments

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

Within one year

241,881

223,469

Later than one year but not later than five years

145,456

264,783

Total Lease Commitments

387,337

488,252

On 1 July 2015 the Authority entered into an operating lease agreement for IT infrastructure support. The agreement is for a three year period and will
contribute to an increase in commitments over the term of the agreement of $62,922.

Note 11 – Capital Commitments
As at 30 June 2015, the Authority had no outstanding capital commitments (30 June 2014: Nil).

Note 12 – Contingent Liabilities and Assets
As at 30 June 2015 the Authority had no contingent liabilities and contingent assets (2013/14: Nil).

Note 13 – Reconciliation of Net Result for the Year to Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net result for the Reporting Period
Depreciation

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

(598,038)

(106,405)

7,771

8,254

88,244

(112,694)

Changes in Assets and Liabilities
Decrease/ (Increase) in Receivables
(Increase) / Decrease in Prepayments
(Decrease) / Increase in Creditors and Accruals
Increase /(Decrease) in Employee Entitlements
Net Cash (Outflow) / Inflow from Operating Activities

Note 14 – Financing Arrangements
The Authority has no overdraft or other financing facilities (2013/14: Nil).
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(4,126)

-

(363,281)

471,550

6,509

(90,072)

(862,921)

170,633

Notes to the Financial Report for the Year Ended 30 June 2015
Note 15 – Superannuation
The Authority’s contribution details and amounts expensed in relation to the employee superannuation funds are as follows:

2014/15
Scheme

Type of Scheme

Vic Super

Accumulation

2013/14

Rate %

$

Rate %

$

9.5

62,920

9.25

52,717

Emergency Services & State Super

Defined Benefits

10.3

13,150

10.3

12,829

Care Super

Accumulation

9.5

9,723

9.25

8,894

Australian Super

Accumulation

9.5

8,688

9.25

16,912

Vision Super

Accumulation

9.5

8,594

9.25

6,223

DIY Master Plan

Accumulation

9.5

8,356

9.25

7,594

Mercer Super Trust

Accumulation

9.5

8,264

9.25

9,450

HESTA Super Fund

Accumulation

9.5

8,228

9.25

7,342

HOST plus

Accumulation

9.5

7,855

9.25

7,115

Australian Ethical Super

Accumulation

9.5

5,865

9.25

-

ING One Answer Personal Super

Accumulation

9.5

4,765

9.25

4,198

BT Business Super

Accumulation

9.5

3,410

9.25

6,681

IOOF Portfolio Service

Accumulation

9.5

-

9.25

9,670

Telstra Super Pty Ltd

Accumulation

9.5

-

9.25

6,286

Others

Accumulation

9.5

10,889

9.25

TOTAL

160,707

7,780
163,691

There were no loans from the Superannuation Funds to the Authority during the year.
Outstanding superannuation contributions as at 30 June 2015 are $18,781 (2013/14: $12,515).

Note 16 – Responsible Persons and Accountable Officer Disclosure
In accordance with the Ministerial Directions issued by the Minister for Finance under the Financial Management Act 1994, the following disclosures are
made regarding responsible persons for the reporting period.

16(a) Responsible Ministers
The Ministers responsible for the Authority during the financial year were:


the Hon. Ryan James Smith, MP, Minister for Environment and Climate Change (1 July 2014 – 3 December 2014); and



the Hon. Peter Walsh, MLA, Minister for Water (1 July 2014 – 3 December 2014); and



The Hon. Lisa Neville, MLA, Minister for Environment, Climate Change and Water (4 December 2014 to 30 June 2015)

The remuneration for the Ministers is separately disclosed in the accounts of the Department of Premier and Cabinet.

16(b) Accountable Officer
The person who held the position of Accountable Officer in the Authority during the financial year was Mr David Buntine (Chief Executive Officer),
(1 July 2014 – 30 June 2015)
Remuneration received or receivable by the Accountable Officer in connection with the management of the Authority during the financial year was in the range:
$180,000 - $189,999

(2013/14: $180,000 - $189,999)
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Note 16 – Responsible Persons and Accountable Officer Disclosure – continued
16(c) Board Members
The persons who were Board Members at any time during the financial year were:

Name
Neville Goodwin-Chair

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Peter Akers

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Kay Spierings

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Arron Wood

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Laura Mumaw

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Gregory Aplin

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Sarah Ewing

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Jane Jobe

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

Jacquelyn Ross

1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015

The number of Board Members whose remuneration from the Authority was within the specified bands is as follows:

$

2014/15

2013/14

0 – 9,999

0

3

10,000 – 19,999

8

6

20,000 – 29,999

1

1

$126,435

$124,435

2014/15

2013/14

$

$

7,500

7,300

Total remuneration received or due and receivable Board Members from the reporting entity amounted to:

16(d) Loans
There were no loans in existence by the Authority to Responsible Persons or related parties at the date of this report.

16(e) Payments to other personnel
The Authority did not have any executive officers or other personnel with significant management responsibilities.

Note 17 – Remuneration of Auditors

Amounts paid or payable to the Victorian Auditor General’s Office for the audit of the
Authority’s financial statements

Note 18 – Subsequent Events
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the reporting period which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of
the Authority, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Authority in future financial years. (2013/14: Nil).
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Disclosure Index
The annual report of the Port Phillip & Westernport CMA is prepared in accordance with all relevant Victorian Government legislations and
pronouncements. This index has been prepared to facilitate identification of the Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning’s compliance
with statutory disclosure requirements.
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Acronyms
Acronym

Meaning

CARTs

Catchment Action Round Tables

CAP

Conservation Action Planning

CEO

Chief Executive Officer

CMA

Catchment Management Authority

CVA

Conservation Volunteers Australia

DELWP

Department of Environment, Land, Water and Planning

EPBC Act

Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act

EPBC

EPBC Act listing of nationally threatened native species and ecological communities, native migratory
species and marine species.

FOI

Freedom of Information

FTE

Full-time Employee
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Independent Broad-based Anti-corruption Commission of Victoria

ILC

Indigenous Land Corporation

KPI

Key performance indicator

NRM

Natural Resource Management

RIF

Regional Indigenous Facilitator

RLF

Regional Landcare Facilitator

PPWCMA

Port Phillip and Westernport Catchment Management Authority

RCS

Port Phillip and Western Port Regional Catchment Strategy

SLMC

Sustainable Land Management Coordinator

WH&S

Workplace Health and Safety

WinHort

Women in Horticulture

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

73

Index
Index		

Page

Acronyms

73

Financial Statements

Annual report

43

Financial Statements Statutory Certification

Audit Committee

42

Financial Statements Independent Auditor’s Report

50-51

Balance Sheet

53

Financial results

47-48

Board		
Business and Remuneration Committee

7
42

Cash Flow Statement

55

Catchment condition

40

Chair’s message

6

Chief Executive Officer’s message

8

Financial Report

49-70
49

	PPWCMA cumulative expenditure over five years

48

	PPWCMA cumulative revenue over five years

48

	PPWCMA five year financial summary

47

	PPWCMA revenue and expenditure in 2014/15

47

	Sources of PPWCMA revenue over five years

47

Governance

41-42

	Board meetings

41

43

	Internal Audit

42

	Availability of additional information

45

	Committees

42

	Capital projects

44

	Community inclusiveness and diversity

45

	Compliance with the Building Act 1993

44

	Compliance with the Catchment and Land
Protection Act 1994

Compliance

Government grants

14-16

	Assessment Panel

42

Greening the Maribyrnong

32-33

43

Grow West

26-27

Indigenous communities

24-25

	Consultancies

43

	Corporate Plan and Annual Report

43

	DataVic Access Policy

43

	Employees

9

Initiatives and key achievements

5

Landcare movement

18-19
28-29

	Employment and conduct

45

Living Links

	Financial Management Compliance Framework

43

Map of Port Phillip & Western Port Region

	Freedom of Information

43

Notes to the Financial Statements

56-70

	Government advertising expenditure

44

	Industrial relations

44

Port Phillip & Western Port Regional Catchment Strategy

12-13

	Information privacy

44

	International travel
	National Competition Policy compliance

17

	Steering Committee

42

44

Ramsar Protection Program

34-35

44

Risk management

42

43

	Compliance Attestation

42

	Statement of Obligations

43

Statement of Changes in Equity

54

	
Victorian Industry Participation Policy Act 2003

44



Protected Disclosure Act 2012

	Workforce

44-45

	Workplace health & safety

45-46

Comprehensive Operating Statement

52

Dandenong Ranges

38-39

Disclosure index

71-72

Summary of Performance

10-11

Sustainable agriculture

22-23

Sustainable land management

20-21

Valuing our Volcanic Plains

36-37

Values		

4

Vision		

4

Workplace culture
Yarra4Life

74

47

Port Phillip & Westernport CMA

46
30-31

Port Phillip & Westernport
Catchment Management Authority
Level 1, Landmark Corporate Centre
454 – 472 Nepean Hwy
FRANKSTON VIC 3199
P 03 8781 7900
F 03 9781 0199
E enquiries@ppwcma.vic.gov.au

